
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 06, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of August 15, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing September 17-23, 2022 as Constitution Week. 

3. Proclamation recognizing September 19-25, 2022 as National Rail Safety Week. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3015, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of August 10, 2022 relative to an appeal 
hearing of a dangerous animal. 

6. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of August 15, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Fireworks follow-up. 
b) Downtown public parking structure. 
c) Safety Improvements - 6th & State to 6th & Main. 
d) Clarification of Private Shared Parking Requirements Referral to Planning & Zoning Commission. 

7. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Donna Mallin, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 
b) Jason Mehmen, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 
c) Robert Wright, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024. 

8. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for 
the position of Building Inspector. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

9. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2022. 

10. Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with Daffodils, Inc., d/b/a Buzz 
Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, for a first tobacco violation. 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
b) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
c) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
d) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
e) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
f) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor, Special Class A beer & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
g) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 
i) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 16 & September 29-30, 2022) 
j) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in ownership. 
k) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 
l) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the General Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund, Health Insurance Fund, and Rec Capital Fund relative to the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2022.  

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Wellness Program Services Agreement with 
TMA @ Your Service, LLC (d/b/a “Wellworks For You”) relative to a platform for the city’s employee 
wellness program. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio Lease relative to the use of 
224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting 
Artist Program. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cultural Leadership Partners Program 
Operating Support Grant with the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs relative to Hearst Center 
Cultural Programs and Operational Expenses. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of three Agreements for Lease of Artwork relative to 
the Main Street Bridge Murals Project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Agreement for Rotary Plaza with The Rotary 
Club of Cedar Falls relative to construction of a plaza, monument and recreational trail to be located 
at 205-221 West 1st Street. 

18. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 1910 Tremont Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

19. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a new duplex at 1224 West 20th Street. 

20. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Iowa Flatworks, Inc., 
in the amount of $49,143.69, being the lowest bid received for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment 
Project - Zone 5. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting a Purchaser’s Affidavit and Warranty Deed, in conjunction with 
the Olive Street Box Culvert Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for a Surface Transportation Block 
Grant (STBG) Program Federal-aid SWAP Project with the Iowa Department of Transportation 
relative to the Main Street Reconstruction Project - 6th Street to University Avenue. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Vacancy Agreements, in conjunction with the 
Main Street Reconstruction Project - 6th Street to University Avenue.  

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of fourteen Owner Purchase Agreements, seven 
Tenant Purchase Agreements and one Driveway Approach Agreement; and approving and 
accepting ten Temporary Construction Easements and seven Tenant Temporary Construction 
Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project - 6th Street to University 
Avenue. 

25. Resolution setting September 19, 2022 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of 
site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). 

Ordinances 

26. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
adoption of revised City Council Meeting Procedures, upon its first consideration. 

27. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Utility Parkway, upon its first consideration.  

Allow Bills and Claims 

28. Allow Bills and Claims for September 6, 2022. 

Council Referrals 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Adjournment 

3



COMMUNITY CENTER 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 15, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

53939 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of August 1, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53940 - City Administrator Gaines provided an update on a private pedestrian bridge near 

Aldrich Elementary School. Mayor Green provided additional comments.  
 
53941 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3014, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain 
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and 
placing the same in the A-1, Agricultural District, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3014 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
53942 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3015, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. 
Nay: Sires. Motion carried. 

 
53943 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of standing 
committees for the remainder of calendar year 2022. 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Kyle Wiebers, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024. 
b) Jennifer Onuigbo, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2025. 
c) Michele Jensen, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2024. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine – renewal. 
b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
e) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53944 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,886, approving and adopting a job classification for the position of 

Horticulturist in the Public Works Department. 

 Resolution #22,887, approving and authorizing execution of a Mutual 
Confidential Disclosure Agreement with N. Harris Computer Corporation 
(CityView) relative to replacement of Financial and Community Development 
Software Systems. 

 Resolution #22,888, approving and authorizing execution of a Confidentiality & 
Non-Disclosure Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc., relative to replacement 
of Financial and Community Development Software Systems. 

 Resolution #22,889, approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction 
with the 1990 transfer of jurisdiction of portions of University Avenue, Main 
Street, West 6th Street and Franklin Street (f/n/a U.S. Highway 218). 

 Resolution #22,890, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Lehman Trucking & Excavating Inc., relative to demolition of 
buildings located at 4919 Hudson Road, in conjunction with the Ashworth Drive 
Extension Project. 

 Resolution #22,891, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed and two Partial 
Releases of Real Estate Mortgage, in conjunction with the Greenhill Road & 
South Main Street Intersection Improvement Project. 

 Resolution #22,892, approving and accepting completion of public improvements 
in Terraces at West Glen First Addition. 

 Resolution #22,893, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 4B to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the West Viking Road Industrial Park Expansion 
Project - Phase 1. 

 Resolution #22,894, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project. 

 Resolution #22,895, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Western Home Services, Inc. and 
Western Home Independent Living Services, Inc. relative to a post-construction 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

stormwater management plan for Western Home Communities Tenth Addition. 

 Resolution #22,896, approving the preliminary plat of Western Home 
Communities Tenth Addition. 

 Resolution #22,897, approving the final plat of Western Home Communities 
Tenth Addition. 

 Resolution #22,898, approving and authorizing execution of a Letter of 
Agreement for asbestos testing and clearance monitoring services with Asbestos 
Inspections, Testing & Training, Inc., in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls 
Flood Buyout Program. 

 Resolution #22,899, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Completion of Improvements with Midwest Development Co. relative to the final 
plat of Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition.  

 Resolution #22,900, approving the final plat of Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,886 through #22,900 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53945- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,901, 
approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing and 
providing for the issuance of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 
2022, and levying a tax to pay said notes; and approving the Tax Exemption 
Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate, be adopted. Following a 
comment by Councilmember Sires, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,901 duly passed and adopted. 

53946- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,902, 
approving and accepting the contract and bond of Kirk Gross Company for 
furniture relative to the City Hall Remodel Project, be adopted. Following a 
comment by Councilmember Sires, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,902 duly passed and adopted. 

53947- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,903, 
approving and authorizing execution of fifty-seven Owner Purchase Agreements 
and two Tenant Purchase Agreements; and approving and accepting fifty-seven 
Temporary Construction Easements and two Tenant Temporary Construction 
Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction (6th Street to 
University) Project, be adopted. Following a comment by Councilmember Sires, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,903 duly passed and adopted. 

53948 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
August 15, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53949 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Community 

Development Committee consideration of removing 2/3 vote required to overrule 
Planning & Zoning Commission, referencing Code Sections 26-4(c) and 18-
23(5). Following comments by Councilmembers Dunn, Sires and deBuhr, the 
motion carried 4-3, with Schultz, Harding and Dunn voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to refer to the Finance and 

Business Operations Committee review of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) to 
develop standardized city policy for length of TIF. Following comments by 
Councilmembers Schultz and Ganfield, and responses by City Administrator 
Gaines, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

  
53950 - Public Safety Director Berte responded to Councilmember Sires request for an 

update on shots fired on College Hill over the weekend. 
 
  Councilmember Ganfield stated his support of Active Shooter Training being 

offered by the City and recommended that the public attend. 
  
  Public Safety Director Berte announced the Public Safety Open House on August 

17th from 4:00 to 7:00 PM. 
   
53951 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the meeting be 

adjourned at 7:25 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

7

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 
SEPTEMBER 17 – 23, 2022  

 

WHEREAS, September 17, 2022, marks the two hundred and thirty-fifth 

anniversary of the drafting of the Constitution of the United States of America by 

the fifty-five delegates to the 1787 Constitutional Convention; and  

WHEREAS, the U.S. Constitution defined for our nation the twin axioms of basic 

human equality and the right to life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Constitution is the guardian of our liberties, embodies the 

principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule by law; and  

WHEREAS, the aims of Constitution Week are to emphasize citizens’ 

responsibilities for protecting and defending the Constitution, inform people that 

the Constitution is the basis for America's great heritage and the foundation for 

our way of life, and encourage the study of the historical events that led to the 

framing of the Constitution in September 1787; and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to annually accord official recognition to this 

magnificent document and its memorable anniversary, as well as to the patriotic 

celebrations and educational activities which will commemorate the occasion by 

the Daughters of the American Revolution and other civic-minded groups;  

NOW, THEREFORE I, Mayor Rob Green, do hereby proclaim the week of 

September 17-23 as Constitution Week in the City of Cedar Falls, and I do 

encourage citizens to reaffirm the ideals of the Constitution’s authors through 

personal study and understanding of Constitutional principles, and by vigilantly 

working to uphold the Constitutional protections guaranteed to all Americans. 

Signed this 30th day of August, 2022. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
8

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

NATIONAL RAIL SAFETY WEEK 
SEPTEMBER 19 – 25, 2022  

 

 
WHEREAS, 2,148 rail grade crossing collisions resulted in 658 personal injuries 
and were responsible for 238 fatalities in the United States during 2021; and  

WHEREAS, 1,151 trespassing incidents have occurred in the United States 
resulting in 528 pedestrians being killed and another 623 injured while 
trespassing on railroad property rights of way during 2021; and  

WHEREAS, educating and informing the public about rail safety, reminding the 
public that railroad right of ways are private property, enhancing public 
awareness of the dangers associated with highway rail grade crossings, ensuring 
pedestrians and motorists are looking and listening while near railways, and 
obeying established traffic laws will reduce the number of fatalities and injuries; 
and  

WHEREAS, the International Association of Chiefs of Police, National Operation 
Lifesaver, United States Department of Transportation, and all local, state, 
county, and railroad law enforcement officers, first responders, and railroad 
corporations commit to partnering together in an effort to educate at a national 
level all aspects of railroad safety, to enforce applicable laws in support of 
National Rail Safety Week; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 
September 19th to 25th, 2022 as National Rail Safety Week in the city, and I 
encourage all citizens to recognize the importance of rail safety education.  

Signed this 1st day of September, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________                                          
Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
   

 9

Item 3.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

  FROM: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

 DATE: August 16, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  Designation of Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Spaces 

 
In November 2019, City Council approved a pilot program for installation and 
designation of a public electric vehicle charging parking space on West 2nd Street 
(located just north of City Hall). Although the charging unit that was installed had two 
charging cables, we started with designating only one space to determine how much 
use it would get. During the test period, we did not draft an ordinance, but we posted 
signs designating the space for actively charging electric vehicles only, and we 
monitored the space by giving other vehicles warnings. 
 
Since installation, the number of charging sessions has been increasing and the second 
charging cable has been pulled over to other parking areas and even pulled across the 
sidewalk, creating potential hazards. As the usage continues to increase, CFU and City 
staff feel that designation of the second charging space is needed to safely 
accommodate the additional vehicles wanting to use both charging spaces at this 
location. Therefore, we recommend designating the adjacent parking space as an 
electric vehicle charging space and adopting the attached ordinance to enable 
enforcement of proper use of the spaces. 
 
Please feel free to contact Jennifer Rodenbeck or myself with any questions.  

10

Item 4.



ORDINANCE NO. 3015 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW SECTION 23-372, ELECTRIC VEHICLE 
(EV) CHARGING SPACE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 

Division I, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 
23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa is hereby amended by adding thereto a new Section 23-372, Electric vehicle 
(EV) charging space, as follows: 

Sec. 23-372. Electric vehicle (EV) charging space. 

(a) For the purposes of this section, "electric vehicle charging space" means a public 
parking space that is located on a public street or in a public parking lot that is 
served by charging equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of 
electric energy to a battery or other energy storage device in an electric vehicle. 

(b) Where signs are posted, no person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle in a 
designated electric vehicle charging space if the vehicle is not electrically 
connected to the charging equipment via the electric charging cord, and where 
the electric vehicle charging station is indicated by signage identifying the station 
as an electric vehicle charging station and indicating that it is only for electric 
vehicle charging. 

(c) Violations of this section are subject to fines enumerated in Section 23-356. 

 

INTRODUCED:     August 1, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   August 1, 2022   

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   August 15, 2022   

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

Item 4.



Administration Committee 
Cedar Falls Public Safety Department 

August 10, 2022 
 

The meeting of the Administration Committee met at the Public Safety Department at 2:03 p.m. on August 
10, 2022, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly 
Dunn, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, and Gil Schultz.  Staff members from all City Departments and 
members of the community attended in person.   

Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Administration Committee 
agenda, Appeal Hearing:  Dangerous Animal.   

Chair Dunn swore in via telephone Nicholas Wireman, 1113 Linedale Road, Cedar Falls.  Mr. Wireman 
gave a statement that included details on his Pit Bull, overview of the veterinarian exam and the City 
Code of Ordinance pertaining to section 6.   

The following exhibits were accepted:  1. Ms. Geltz’s Yorkshire Terrier (2 photos), 2. Mr. Wireman’s Pit 
Bull (3 photos), 3. Veterinarian notes (2 pages), 4. Veterinarian bill (1 page), 5. Picture of knee (1 page), 
6. Prior call for service (1 page), 7. Notice dated June 30, 2022 to Mr. Wireman (1 page), 8. Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances pertaining to dangerous animals (3 pages). 

 Attorney Anderson, cross examined Mr. Wireman, with no further questions from Attorney Anderson, 
Chair Dunn swore in Mr. Lawrence Miller, 1270 Black Hawk Road, Waterloo.  Mr. Wireman conducted a 
direct examination of Mr. Miller.  Attorney Anderson conducted a cross-examination of Mr. Miller, with no 
further questions from Attorney Anderson, Mr. Miller was excused.  Attorney Anderson called witness 
Sharon Geltz to the stand, Chair Dunn swore in Ms. Geltz, 1103 West 9th Street, Cedar Falls.  Attorney 
Anderson conducted direct examination of Ms. Geltz.  After no further questions from Attorney Anderson, 
Mr. Wireman cross-examined Ms. Geltz.  After no further questions from Mr. Wireman, Attorney Anderson 
re-directed Ms. Geltz, with no further questions Ms. Geltz was dismissed.  Attorney Anderson called 
Officer Baumgartner to the stand, Chair Dunn swore in Officer Christian Baumgartner, Cedar Falls Police 
Division.  Attorney Anderson conducted direct examination of his witness Officer Baumgartner.  After no 
further questions from Attorney Anderson, Mr. Wireman cross-examined Officer Baumgartner.  After no 
further questions from Mr. Wireman, Officer Baumgartner was dismissed.  Attorney Anderson called 
Samantha Teply with Den Herder Veterinary Hospital to the stand, Chair Dunn swore in Ms. Teply, 615 
Hearthside Drive, Cedar Falls.  Attorney Anderson conducted direct examination of Ms. Teply.  After no 
further questions from Attorney Anderson, Mr. Wireman had no questions for Teply.  Attorney Anderson 
called Acting Police Chief Mark Howard to the stand, Chair Dunn swore in Acting Police Chief Howard, 
Cedar Falls Police Division.  Attorney Anderson conducted direct examination of Acting Police Chief 
Howard.  After no further questions from Attorney Anderson, Mr. Wireman cross-examined Acting Police 
Chief Howard.  After no further questions for Acting Police Chief Howard he was dismissed.  Attorney 
Rogers asked Mr. Wireman for final comments.  Mr. Wireman suggested 30 more days of monitoring of 
his Pit Bull or a written agreement as suggested in the Code of Ordinance Section 6-134(2). 

It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse to adjourn to closed session under Iowa Code § 
21.5(1)(f), to discuss the decision to be rendered in a contested case proceeding.  Upon call of the roll, 
the following named Administration Committee members voted.  Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Kruse, Ganfield and 
Schultz.  Nay:  None.  Motion carried.  

The Administration Committee convened in closed session at 3:42 p.m.  

Chair Dunn reconvened the Administration Committee meeting in open session at 4:10 p.m. 

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to consider the appeal by Mr. Wireman. Administration 
Committee voted.  Aye:  None.  Nay:  deBuhr, Dunn, Kruse, Ganfield and Schultz.  Motion failed. 

Chair Dunn directed Attorney Rogers to draft a written decision.   

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned at 4:12 p.m. Motion 
carried. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

12

Item 5.



MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
Community Center 
August 15, 2022 

 
The meeting of Standing Committees met at the Community Center at 5:20 p.m. on August 15, 
2022, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly 
Dunn, Daryl Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires.  Staff members 
from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   

Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda, Fireworks 
follow-up and introduced Acting Police Chief Mark Howard; he stated overall success of the 
ordinance and suggested changes moving forward regarding dates and times.  Councilmembers 
discussed Public Safety staff overtime, language regarding dates and times allowed, and 
misdemeanor wording and fines.   
Councilmember Ganfield moved that staff bring forward revisions to the ordinance regarding 
misdemeanor language and fines; Councilmember Schultz seconded.  Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Schultz, Dunn, deBuhr, and Sires and responses by City Attorney 
Kevin Rogers and Public Safety Director Craig Berte, the motion was put to vote.  Aye:  Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay: none.  Motion carried. 
Councilmember Dunn moved that staff bring forward recommended changes to the ordinance 
regarding dates and times; Councilmember Ganfield seconded.  Following questions and comments 
by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding, and Ganfield and responses by City Attorney Rogers, the 
motion was put to vote.  Aye:  Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay: 
none. Motion carried. 

Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn introduced the only item on the agenda, Downtown Public Parking Structure and 
introduced City Clerk Jacque Danielsen; she outlined the potential for a downtown parking structure, 
the background of recent parking studies and implementations, and the City Council goal to explore 
all options of the parking structure and reevaluation of paid parking options.  Ms. Danielsen 
introduced Lexie Heath, past chair of the Community Main Street (CMS) Board of Directors; Ms. 
Heath read a letter of support from CMS to the City.  Ms. Danielsen stated the City has no 
recommendations at this time and requests Council direction.  Councilmembers discussed return to 
paid parking, total paid vs. partial paid parking, and consideration of private partnership for the 
structure.   
Chair Dunn asked for the motion to have staff bring options for a parking structure, including funding; 
Councilmember Harding so moved; Councilmember Ganfield seconded.  Councilmember deBuhr 
requested an amendment to add consideration of return to paid parking; Councilmember Harding 
seconded amendment.  Chair Dunn opened for public comment.  Wayne Jacobson, 91 River Ridge 
Road, commented in support of the parking structure and encouraged Council to think outside the 
box and explore parking alternatives on Clay Street including angled parking.  Following questions 
and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, and deBuhr and responses by City Administrator 
Ron Gaines, the motion was put to the vote.  Aye:  Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield and Dunn; 
Nay:  deBuhr and Sires.  Motion carried. 
Public Works Committee: 
Chair Schultz introduced the only item on the agenda, Safety Improvements – 6th & State to 6th & 
Main and introduced City Engineer David Wicke; he outlined the existing street and features, 
provided crash data over the last 10 years, and explained potential improvements.  Councilmembers 
discussed minimum street width requirements, safety concerns for vehicles, pedestrians, and 
bicyclists, crosswalk striping, traffic signage, and traffic mirrors.  Operations and Maintenance 
Division Manager Brian Heath stated that these items will be considered and analyzed.  

Community Development Committee: 
Chair Harding introduced the only item on the agenda, Clarification of Private Shared Parking 
Requirements Referral to Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commission and introduced Planning and 
Community Services Manager Karen Howard; she noted that Council referred this to committee so 13

Item 6.



they could clarify their petition to the Planning & Zoning Commission; she indicated previous 
presentation materials as included in the meeting packet, and staff was available to answer 
questions.   
Councilmember Dunn motioned to petition P&Z to remove the shared parking requirement; 
Councilmember Schultz seconded.  Councilmembers requested clarity on removing only mandatory, 
not voluntary shared parking.  Councilmember Kruse requested amending the motion to include 
changing the required stall for residential from .75 to 1 space per bedroom; Councilmember Kruse 
so motioned; Councilmember deBuhr seconded.  The amendment was put to the vote - remove the 
residential shared parking requirement and include .75 to 1 space per bedroom - Aye:  Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse,   Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay:  none.  Chair Harding requested a vote to 
the motion on the floor. Chair Harding requested striking “residential” before “mandatory” and adding 
“residential” after “change” so the motion reads:  Refer to P&Z to remove the shared parking with 
amendment to change residential from .75 to 1 space.  The motion was put to the vote:  Aye:  
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse,   Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay:  none.   

Chair Harding declared the meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m. 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

14

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: August 30, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Human Rights Commissioners 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §12-27: Human Rights Commission 

  (b) CFD 1201.22b: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a) and my 

process outlined in reference (b), I hereby nominate the following citizens for appointment to 

the Human Rights Commission: 

 

 Ms. Donna Mallin – Term ends 7/1/2023 

 Mr. Jason Mehmen – Term ends 7/1/2023 

 Mr. Robert Wright – Term ends 7/1/2024 

 

2. These three nominees have been interviewed by the Selection Committee and have 

determined them to be the most qualified candidates for appointment; their General 

Applications and Candidate Questionnaires are attached for your consideration. 

 

Encl:  (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaires for nominees 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Staff Liaison 

 

 
 

### 
 
 
 

15

Item 7.



16

Item 8.



17

Item 9.



18

Item 9.



19

Item 9.



20

Item 9.



21

Item 9.



22

Item 9.



23

Item 9.



24

Item 9.



25

Item 9.



26

Item 9.



27

Item 9.



28

Item 9.



29

Item 9.



30

Item 9.



31

Item 9.



32

Item 9.



33

Item 9.



34

Item 9.



35

Item 9.



36

Item 9.



37

Item 9.



38

Item 9.



39

Item 9.



40

Item 9.



41

Item 9.



42

Item 9.



43

Item 9.



44

Item 9.



45

Item 9.



46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:       ORDER ACCEPTING 

Daffodils, Inc.      ACKNOWLEDGMENT/ 

d/b/a Buzz Smoke & Vapor    SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

2125 College Street, Suite A 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 ON this ______ day of _______________, 2022, in lieu of a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council approves the attached Acknowledgment/Settlement 

Agreement between the above-captioned permittee and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Therefore, the Cedar Falls City Council FINDS that the above-captioned 

permittee has remitted to the "City of Cedar Falls", a civil penalty in the amount of Three 

Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($300.00).  Be advised that this sanction will count as a first 

violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the judgment in this matter is hereby satisfied. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls 

 

 

49

Item 10.



50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  August 29, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer permits. We 
find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

b) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

c) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

d) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

e) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 

f) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor, Special Class A beer & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

g) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

i) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 16 & September 29-30, 2022) 

j) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 

k) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 

l) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 

56

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: August 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  FYE June 30, 2022 

 
City finance staff has been working on closing out the general ledger for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2022.  As part of that process, we have looked at the total revenues 
and the total expenditures for the General Fund.  We were fortunate in FY22 to have 
some revenues that exceeded budgeted amounts.  These included hotel/motel taxes, 
COVID relief grant, and the receipt of the backfill funds.  In addition, we had areas that 
expenditures were less than budgeted amounts.  The significant areas included 
recreation, engineering, parks, and public safety.  The result was an excess in the 
General Fund of approximately $2.2 million.  The backfill portion in the amount of 
approximately $600,000 was already designated by the City Council through the goal 
setting and budget process to set those funds aside for a capital project if those funds 
were received.   
 
A major concern continues to be the fund balance in the City’s self-insured health 
insurance fund.  Unfortunately this past year the City has a loss in this fund of about 
$1.3 million due to several large claims.  Staff is recommending transferring $900,000 to 
the health insurance fund to help offset this loss and keep strong reserves in the health 
insurance fund.  This amount represents funds the City could have levied under the 
trust and agency fund, but had room in the $8.10 levy to levy for these funds.  
 
The Iowa Fitness Center Relief Program relief grant received in FY22 in the amount of 
$328,334 that was designated for recreation, staff is recommending transferring these 
funds to the rec capital account to help fund needed capital projects in the rec areas 
and the aquatic center.     
 
The remaining approximate $300,000 can be transferred to the capital projects fund.   
When the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is developed this fall, these extra funds 
can help offset any project that is seeing increased costs due to inflation or be used for 
a project identified as using General Fund Savings (GFS) on the CIP.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 

57

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND, HEALTH 

INSURANCE FUND, AND REC CAPITAL FUND RELATIVE TO THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED JUNE 30, 2022.  

 
 

 WHEREAS, each year the city staff compiles the total revenues received by the 

General Fund and the total expenditures of the General Fund to determine the balance 

in the General Fund at year end; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City received $595,874.16 in backfill funds from the State of 

Iowa to be used for a one-time capital project as determined by the City Council through 

the goal setting and the budget process; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City also received $328,333.94 for under an IEDA Iowa Fitness 

Center Relief Program grant; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council wants to ensure that the City maintain a viable 

health insurance benefits program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, to meet these goals outlined by City Council, the backfill funds 

received in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 in the amount of $595,874.16 will be 

transferred to the Capital Projects Fund for a capital project identified in the City’s 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with the funding source of GFS (General Fund 

Savings), $900,000.00 will be transferred to the Health Insurance Fund to help offset 

losses in the City’s reserves; $328,333.94 will be transferred to the Rec Capital Fund to 

support recreation and aquatic projects, and the remaining surplus of $300,000 will be 

transferred to the Capital Projects Fund.  This remaining amount will be used for a 

project to be specifically designated by the City Council through the goal setting and 

capital improvements process; and 

 

58

Item 12.



 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and authorize said transfers.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said transfers from the General Fund to the Health Insurance Fund, Rec 

Capital Fund, and Capital Projects Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby 

approved and authorized.  

 

ADOPTED this 6th day of September, 2022 

 

                                                                                                                                         
__________________________ 

                                                                                      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST:                                                                                                         
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

59

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5528 
Fax: 319-273-8656 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation & Community Programs Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Mike Soppe, Manager 
 
 DATE: August 19, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Wellworks Contract   
   
   
 
Attached you will find the Professional Goods and Services Agreement with Wellworks.  
They are the computer based portal the Wellness Committee has selected to help carry 
out the goals, direction, and overall plan for the upcoming year.    
 
In June of 2022, the Wellness Committee met with the City Directors and presented a 
plan for employee activities in fiscal year 2023. The Committee estimated the costs, in 
order to fit within the City’s approved budget for wellness.  Included in this step was 
selecting the Wellworks platform to assist the Committee.  Wellorks is one of the leading 
providers of corporate wellness providing tools to empower employees to help establish 
and maintain a healthy lifestyle. Wellness programs, such as ours, have a proven 
record of return on investment. The Wellness Committee goals are to reduce insurance 
costs, increase productivity, decrease absenteeism, and increase over well-being as a 
priority for the City.  
 
The Wellworks platform comes highly recommended and has a menu of 67 different 
challenges related to health benefits. The platform assists in running the challenges as 
well as tracking the progress and rewards related to completing them.  The Wellness 
Committee recommends approving this contract with Wellworks.  
 
   
 
   

 

60

Item 13.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

WELLNESS PROGRAM SERVICES AGREEMENT 

TMA @ Your Service, LLC (d/b/a “Wellworks For You”) 

 

This Agreement is by and between TMA @ Your Service, LLC (d/b/a “Wellworks For You”) having a principal place of 

business located at 70 Lancaster Avenue, Frazer, PA  19355 (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), 

and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 

Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The City understands and agrees that the timely delivery of Services requires the City and the Service 

Recipients to provide complete and accurate information to the Contractor. The Contractor and the City agree that 

time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to provide the Services to the City.  

Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the provision of 

Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “A”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “A”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

61

Item 13.



2 
 

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City at the address listed below in Section 25.0. 

Payments shall be sent to the following address: 

             Wellworks For You 

             70 East Lancaster Avenue 

             Frazer, PA  19355 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days 

written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for  

Services that fail to comply with this Agreement if Contractor fails to cure such noncompliance within seven (7) days 

of written notice by City to the Contractor specifying the noncompliance, or if the City is advised of liens or other 

claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       Intentionally Omitted.   

4.2.       Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and other intellectual property that 

may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

  

62

Item 13.



3 
 

5.0.       Term and Termination. 

5.1.       The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end in one year unless earlier 

terminated under the terms of this Agreement, or unless extended for an additional one-year term by written 

agreement of the parties prior to the expiration of the initial term or extension. 

5.2        The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.3.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the notice shall specify the noncompliance and provide the 

non-performing party seven (7) days from the notice to cure such noncompliance.   

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.      Intentionally Omitted.   

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, Contractor shall have no liability to the City or third parties (a) for the acts or omissions of any person or 

entity other than Contractor in connection with the delivery of Services; and (b) resulting from the City’s and/or a 

Service Recipient’s provision of erroneous, misleading or incomplete information about a Service Recipient. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

  

63

Item 13.



4 
 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 

9.1.       To the fullest extent permitted by law, and subject to the provisions of Section 6.4 hereof, Contractor (for 

purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees, subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor 

under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for 

purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 

City) against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected 

therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not 

limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which 

arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the 

City under this Agreement, to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts 

of the Contractor.  

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement.  Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property. 

9.3.       Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to 

the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this 

Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the 

Contractor. 

9.4.       The City shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, its officers, employees, independent contractors and 

agents of any kind, against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all outlay and expense 

connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the Contractor, 

including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and 

property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with the acts or omissions, including 

claims of negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct, of the City or the City’s employees, elected officials, and 

agents.. 

9.5. It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a 

suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

64

Item 13.



5 
 

Insurance requirement waived:  Small Contract Insurance Requirements apply, 

allowing a higher General Aggregate as a comparable level of insurance in lieu of the 

Umbrella and allowing Commercial General Liability to be provided as “Claims’Made.”  

Per Risk Management Committee review and approval.   (Signature and title of 

authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its 

employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the 

same. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, 

color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where 

age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational 

disqualification.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

  

65

Item 13.



6 
 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet 

due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this 

Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of performance by 

either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if 

and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure; provided that in no event shall the obligation of 

City to pay for Services provided by Contractor be extended by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

66

Item 13.



7 
 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

22.0.       Privacy of Records. 

Contractor shall maintain the privacy and security of individually identifiable patient health information of all intended 

recipients/beneficiaries of the Services (collectively, the “Service Recipients”) in accordance with all relevant state 

and federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the privacy and security standards of the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), including following the procedures and requirements 

set forth on Exhibit “B” attached hereto.  Such records and information shall not be disclosed or released to anyone 

without authorization signed by the Service Recipient, except when disclosure of such information is required by the 

terms of this Agreement, applicable law or is made in response to a compulsory legal process such as a court order. 

23.0.       Identification of Service Recipients; Protection of Information. 

The City shall furnish Contractor with a timely and reliable system for identifying Service Recipients.  Client and the 

City agree that any and all protected health information must be used and protected in accordance with HIPAA.  

24.0.       Work Environment. 

City shall provide, at no charge to Contractor, reasonable access to the City’s workplace at mutually acceptable times 

and the necessary workspace for Contractor to conduct the Services in a setting that will enable Contractor to safely 

and, if applicable, confidentially provide Services to Service Recipients seeking such Services.  City shall provide 

furniture at its sole risk to include, but not limited to, tables and chairs.          

25.0.       Entire Agreement. 

25.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

25.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

67

Item 13.



8 
 

26.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                               Contractor: 

Name:    Mike Soppe                                       Name: ___________________________ 

Title: Recreation & Community Programs Manager                 Title: ______________________________ 

Address: 110 E 13
th

 St                                         Address: ___________________________ 

             Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613                                                       ___________________________ 

Telephone: 319-268-5528                                         Telephone: __________________________ 

Email:  mike.soppe@cedarfalls.com                                      Email: ______________________________  

27.0       Incorporation of Exhibits. 

All Exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference.  If there is any conflict between this 

Agreement and any Exhibit, the terms of the Exhibit shall govern. 

 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor)____________________________ 

By: __________________________________________ 

Its: __________________________________________                    Date: ___________________ 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: __________________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________ 

             Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

                                 

    

68

Item 13.

Tom
Typewriter
Thomas M. Tegler

Tom
Typewriter
President

Tom
Typewriter
70 East Lancaster Avenue

Tom
Typewriter
Frazer, PA. 19355

Tom
Typewriter
610.235.2602

Tom
Typewriter
t.tegler@wellworksforyou.com

Tom
Typewriter
Wellworks For You

Tom
Typewriter
President



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: August 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Red House Studios (224 West Seerley Boulevard) 

 
Please find attached a lease agreement for use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artists’ studio 
space in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. The lease provides for use 
of the studio from September 1, 2022 with expiration date of June 30, 2023. 
 
The Red House Studio has space for four artists. This lease is will fill the final available space for 
the 2022-2023 fiscal year. Agreements for the other three spaces were recently approved or 
renewed. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 

69

Item 14.



70

Item 14.



71

Item 14.



72

Item 14.



73

Item 14.



74

Item 14.



75

Item 14.



76

Item 14.



77

Item 14.



78

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: August 25, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Iowa Arts Council Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating 

Support Grant 
 
The Hearst Center was awarded $10,000 from the Iowa Arts Council through the Cultural 
Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant opportunity. This is the second year of 
this three-year grant award. The final report for year one was submitted and accepted. Our 
FY23 request focused on supporting a series of operational and programming expenses for the 
Hearst Center. 
 
Our FY23 application included: Permanent collection conservation and framing, computer 
equipment, workshops and programming, and exhibition expenses. 
 
The grant does not have a match requirement. Funds must be spent by June 30, 2023. 
 
Funding for the program is made possible by an annual appropriation from the Iowa Legislature 
to the Iowa Arts Council, a division of the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs and by the 
National Endowment for the Arts, a federal agency. 
 
 
Please reach out if you have any questions. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

79

Item 15.



CULTURAL LEADERSHIP PARTNERS PROGRAM 
OPERATING SUPPORT GRANT

IOWA ARTS COUNCIL

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 1

Article 1. Grant Information.

Fiscal Year: 2023 Grant Award: $10,000.00
Grant Number: 202306-11926 Final Report Due 

Date:
08-01-2023

Start Date: 07-01-2022 End Date: 06-30-2023
Program: Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant
Grantee: Cultural Division, City of Cedar Falls
Project Title: Operating Support
Funding Source:
This grant is a subaward under the State Partnership Agreement 1903730-61-22 issued by the National 
Endowment for the Arts to the Iowa Arts Council on June 23, 2022 in the amount of $761,835 to support 
arts programs, services, and activities associated with carrying out the agency’s National Endowment for 
the Arts-approved strategic plan. (Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance number:  45.025).  Subawards 
are subject to 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and to the General Terms & Conditions for Partnership Agreements. 
The amount of this grant award directly supported by federal funds is $10000. The amount of this grant 
award supported by state matching funds to the federal award is $0. 

By execution of this contract, the Grantee assures and certifies that it is not presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in 
this transaction by any federal department or agency; and that no Grant Funds will be used in 
transactions with any entity that is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal department or agency.

Article 2. Identification of Parties.

The grant agreement is made between the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs, 600 East Locust St, Des 
Moines, Iowa 50319 and the Grantee: 

Grantee: Cultural Division, City of Cedar Falls
Acting Entity: James & Meryl Hearst Center for the Arts
Grantee UEI: EGCPJFKF3NC9
Authorized 
Official:

Jennifer Pickar

Primary Contact: Jennifer Pickar
Address: 304 West Seerley Boulevard
City, State Zip: Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

80

Item 15.

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=236bb02f01d2e050f7a5b60c88a67066&mc=true&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=236bb02f01d2e050f7a5b60c88a67066&mc=true&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5
https://www.arts.gov/grants/manage-your-award/awards-after-oct1-2017-to-saa-rao


IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 2

WHEREAS, the Department is a public instrumentality of the State of Iowa charged with the 
administration of the Program and, through its Director or Director’s Designee, is authorized to make 
and sign any contracts and agreements and perform any acts which may be necessary, desirable, or 
proper to carry out the purposes of the Department pursuant to Iowa Code section 303.1A, and;

WHEREAS, the Grantee is an entity legally recognized and located in the State of Iowa and, through its 
Authorized Official, is authorized to make and sign any contracts and agreements and perform any acts 
which may be necessary, desirable or proper to carry out the conditions of this Agreement, the 
Department and the Grantee hereby agree as follows:

Article 3. Definitions.

3.1 Acting Entity means the fiscally sponsored party or an alternative name for the Grantee.

3.2 Agent means affiliate, employees, officers, and any other persons affiliated with the Grantee.

3.3 Agreement means this document.

3.4 Application means the formal request submitted to the Department on official forms published 
by the Department for funding that outlines the Project and meets the requirements of the Program.

3.5 Authorizing Official means the individual with the authority to legally obligate the Grantee to 
this Agreement.

3.6 Department means the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs.

3.7 Director means the individual with the authority to legally obligate the Department to this 
Agreement.

3.8 Director’s Designee means the individual designated by the Director to have the authority to 
legally obligate the Department to this Agreement.

3.9 End Date means the termination date of this Agreement and the final date to execute fiscal and 
programmatic activity related to the Project.

3.10 Final Report means the formal report submitted to the Department on official forms published 
by the Department that outlines the final work, services and budget that was accomplished as a result of 
the Grant Award. The Final Report is not an Application.

3.11 Grant Award means an award of funding provided by the Department to the Grantee to support 
the Project outlined in the Application.

3.12 Grantee means recipient of the Grant Award from the Department.

3.13 Grant Funds means the full or partial amount of the Grant Award.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

81

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 3

3.14 Payment Request Form means the formal request for payment submitted to the Department 
by the Grantee on official forms published by the Department that outlines the work, services budget 
and use of funds to date that was accomplished as a result of the Grant Award. The Payment Request 
Form is not an Application or Final Report.

3.15 Primary Contact means the individual representing the Grantee to whom questions and 
concerns about this Agreement and the Project will be addressed.

3.16 Program means a scheme created and managed by the Department to administer Program 
Fund.

3.17 Program Fund means the monies available to the Department for execution of the Program 
including any federal funding identified in Article 1 of this Agreement.

3.18 Project means the detailed work, services and budget to be accomplished by the Grantee as 
described in the Application and this Agreement.

3.19 Start Date means the beginning date of this Agreement and the first date to execute fiscal and 
programmatic activity related to the Project.

3.20 State means the State of Iowa.

Article 4. Grant Funds.

4.1 Funding Source. Grant Funds for the Project are limited to those monies appropriated and legally 
available to the Department in the Program Fund. The funds of the State, other than those of the 
Program Fund, are not obligated or available to meet any obligations of the Department created by this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall not constitute an obligation or debt of the Department or the State. 

4.2 Maximum Payments. The Grant Award shall be the maximum amount disbursed by the Department 
to the Grantee for Project costs and expenses. The Department’s ultimate financial responsibility under 
this Agreement will not exceed the Grant Award.

4.3 Disbursement of Funds. The Department shall disburse the full amount of the Grant Award to the 
Grantee upon execution of this Agreement. This Agreement dictates the terms and conditions of one 
year of the three year funding commitment set forth in published Program guidelines. Grantees must 
adhere to requirements set forth by the Department to receive subsequent Grant Awards including the 
completion of the Final Report. Failure to fulfill Program requirements by the Grantee will result in 
termination of the three year funding commitment by the Department.  Fulfillment of Program 
requirements will be determined at the discretion of the Department. The Grantee shall be the sole 
authority to claim and receive any disbursements.

4.4 Disallowed Costs.  Grant Funds shall not be used for payment of costs or expenses incurred by 
any Grantee that does not meet requirements set forth in the Program or that are incurred prior to the 
Start Date or after the End Date of this agreement. Grantee must adhere to all federal requirements 
including those noted in Article 1 of this Agreement if Grant Funds are direct federal subawards or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

82

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 4

subawards made as state cost share to federal funds as noted in Article 1 of this Agreement. Any costs 
or expenses which are determined to be unallowable by the Department shall be returned by the 
Grantee to the Department within thirty (30) days of notice of the disallowance.  Except to the extent 
barred by law, Grantee retains responsibility for demonstrating eligibility of costs and expenses, and will 
hold the Department harmless for any audit disallowance related to the eligibility of costs and expenses, 
including repayment of ineligible amounts.

Article 5. Terms of the Grant.

5.1 Effective Dates. The Agreement becomes effective upon signature by the Director of the 
Department or Director’s Designee and the Authorized Official of the Grantee.

5.2 Independent Entity. No Agent of the Grantee shall be deemed an Agent of the Department. The 
Grantee is solely and entirely responsible for its acts and the acts of its Agents during the performance 
of this Agreement. 

5.3 Non-Assignment. The Grantee will not assign this Agreement or otherwise transfer any of its 
rights hereunder or delegate any of its obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the 
Department. Any such attempted assignment, transfer or delegation without the Department’s prior 
written consent shall be void.

5.4 Compliance with Laws and Regulations. The Grantee and its Agents shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, international, and local laws, rules, ordinances, codes, regulations and orders 
when performing within the scope of this Agreement.

5.5 Equal Opportunity and Accessibility. The Grantee and its Agents shall not discriminate on 
the basis of age, associational preference, color, creed, disability, gender, national origin, race, religion, 
sex or sexual orientation against any party when performing within the scope of this Agreement.  All 
parties involved in the Project and their Agents shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
Title 26 of the Fair Labor Standards Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990.

5.6 Department Policies, Guidelines, Rules. The Grantee and its Agents shall abide by all 
applicable published Department policies, procedures, guidelines and rules when performing the scope 
of this Agreement. These policies, procedures, guidelines, and rules include but are not limited to Iowa 
Arts Council Funding Policies, the Iowa Arts Council Grantee Handbook, Iowa Code chapter 303, and 
Iowa Administrative Code chapters 221 and 222.

5.7 Execution of Project. The Grantee shall execute the Project, including use of the Grant Award 
and all other fiscal and programmatic activity, as described in this Agreement and the Application. The 
Grantee shall execute the Project between the Agreement’s State Date and End Date.

5.8 Department Access. Upon written request, the Grantee shall provide the Department access to 
the Project for the purpose of observation, evaluation or to provide appropriate Department 
representation. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

83

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 5

5.9 Acknowledgement. In all promotion, publicity, advertising, the Grantee shall recognize and 
acknowledge the financial contribution of the Department, State agency, and, if applicable, Federal 
agency to the Project using published or provided credit lines and logos as described in the Grantee 
Handbook or in a different manner acceptable to the Department. 

5.10 Payment to Service Providers. The Grantee agrees to pay service providers specified in the 
Application when services are rendered to execute the Project no later than the End Date of this 
Agreement. 

5.11 Modification. Neither this Agreement nor any documents incorporated by reference in 
connection with this Agreement may be changed, waived, modified, amended or discharged except 
through a writing executed by both parties. All substantial modifications to the Project as described in 
the Application must be submitted in writing to the Department by the Grantee. The Department will 
consider whether an amendment request is so substantial as to necessitate re-evaluating the 
Department's decision to provide a Grant Award for the Project.  An amendment will be denied by the 
Department if it substantially alters the circumstances under which the Project funding was originally 
approved or if it does not meet requirements set forth in the Program. 

5.12 Extensions. The Department does not approve extension requests for the Project beyond the 
End Date of this Agreement. 

5.13 Cancellations. The Grantee must submit written notification to the Department if the Project is 
cancelled. In such an event, the Grantee shall return the full Grant Award to the Department within 
thirty (30) days of the written notification and no later than the Final Report Due Date. If the Grantee is 
unable to fulfill this Agreement by virtue of any act or regulation of any public authority, or on the 
account of any rule or order of any military or civil authority, or on account of any war or other national 
or state-declared emergency, or because of labor strike, riot, epidemic, act of God, or any similar cause 
beyond his or her control, the Grantee shall be excused from performance of the terms of this 
Agreement to the extent such performance is prevented. In such an event, the Grantee shall promptly 
return to the Department any unexpended or unobligated Department funds. 

5.14 Record Retention and Access. The Grantee shall maintain its books, documents and records 
that sufficiently and properly document the Grantee’s receipt and use of Grant Funds under this 
Agreement for a period of at least three (3) years following the End Date. The Grantee shall permit the 
Auditor of the State or any authorized representative of the State, at no charge, to access and examine, 
audit, excerpt and transcribe any pertinent books, documents, or electronic or optically stored and 
created records or other records relating directly or indirectly to the Project or Grant Award. If the Grant 
Award is funded with federal funds, the Grantee must submit an audit report to the Department if the 
Grantee has received $750,000 or such other amount as may be set forth by applicable federal law or 
rule in federal funds for the fiscal year the Grant Award is received and expended. 

5.15 Final Report. The Grantee must submit a Final Report and unspent Grant Funds to the 
Department on official forms provided by the Department by the Final Report Due Date. The Grantee 
will be placed on a Department-wide funding moratorium of no less than one (1) year if the Final Report 
and/or unspent Grant Funds are not submitted to the Department by the Final Report Due Date. The 
Department may initiate legal proceedings for the return of Grant Funds. The Grantee must submit a 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

84

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 6

Final Report by the Final Report Due Date regardless of modification, cancellation or extension to the 
Project. 

5.16 Public Record and Copyright. The Grantee acknowledges that all material including 
attachments submitted in the Application, this Agreement and the Final Report are public record. The 
Grantee retains copyright to all submitted material and acknowledges the Department shall use any or 
all of the material including attachments to acknowledge or present the work of the Department or 
Program.

Article 6. Indemnification.

6.1 Indemnification by Grantee. The Grantee and their successors and permitted assigns shall 
defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the Department, the State and their Agents 
(“Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liabilities, damages, losses, 
settlements, demands, deficiencies, judgments, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, the 
reasonable value of time of the Attorney General’s Office and the costs, expenses and attorney fees of 
other counsel retained by any Indemnitee) by third parties, the Grantee, or the Department directly or 
indirectly related to, resulting from, or arising out of this Agreement (“Claims”), including, but not 
limited to, any Claims related to, resulting from, or arising out of:

(a)  Any violation or breach of any term or condition of this Agreement by or on behalf of any Grantee, 
including, without limitation, the furnishing or making by any Grantee of any statement, representation, 
warranty or covenant in connection herewith, that is false, deceptive, or materially incorrect or 
incomplete; or
(b)  Any act or omission of any Grantee, including, without limitation, any negligent acts or omissions, 
intentional or willful misconduct, or unlawful acts of any Grantee or their Agents; or
(c)  Any Grantee’s performance or attempted performance of this Agreement; or
(d)  Failure by any Grantee or their Agents to comply with any applicable local, state, federal and 
international laws, rules, ordinances and regulations; or
(e) Any failure by Grantee or Grantee Contractors to make any reports, payments, withholdings, or 
provide any insurance required by federal and state law, including with respect to Social Security, 
unemployment compensation, workers compensation, employee income, the Affordable Care Act, sales 
taxes, excise taxes, income taxes, property taxes, and/or other taxes, fees, or costs required by Grantee 
or Grantee Contractors to conduct business in the State; or
(f) Any claim for wages, benefits, compensation, insurance, discrimination, or other similar claims 
asserted against the Office or the State of Iowa by any Grantee  Personnel, or any claim, penalties, or 
fines made, levied, assessed, or imposed by another governmental entity or any Grantee Personnel 
against the Office or the State of Iowa in any way related to or involving the misclassification of 
employees as independent contractors or any allegations or findings of the existence of a joint-
employment relationship involving any Grantee Personnel;
(g) Any claim of misappropriation of a trade secret or infringement or violation of any intellectual 
property rights, proprietary rights, or personal rights of or made by Grantee, Grantee Contractors, 
Grantee Personnel, or any third party, including any claims related to the violation or misappropriation 
of any patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark, trade dress, mask work, utility design, or other 
proprietary right.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

85

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 7

6.2 Survival of Indemnification. The Grantee’s duties as set forth in this Article 6 shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement and shall apply to all acts or omissions taken or made in connection with 
the performance of this Agreement regardless of the date any potential Claim is made or discovered by 
the Department or any other Indemnitee. 

6.3 Defense of Claim. The Department shall control the defense of any claim against the 
Department.  The Department may, at its option, tender the defense to Grantee in which case it shall 
reasonably cooperate with the Grantee to facilitate the defense of any Claim against the Department.  
Even if the Department chooses to tender the defense, the Department reserves the right to participate 
in such defense to the extent the Department, in its sole discretion, determines to be in the best 
interests of the State.

Article 7. Termination.

7.1 Termination for Cause by Department. The Department may terminate this Agreement 
upon written notice for the breach by any Grantee of any material term, condition, provision or 
covenant of this Agreement, if such breach is not cured within the time period specified in Department’s 
notice of breach or any subsequent notice or correspondence delivered by the Department to The 
Grantee, provided that cure is feasible.  In addition, the Department may terminate this Agreement 
effective immediately without penalty and without advance notice or opportunity to cure for any of the 
following reasons:
(a)  Any Grantee furnishes any statement, representation, warranty or certification in connection with 
this Agreement that is false, deceptive, misleading or materially incorrect or incomplete;
(b)  Any Grantee or any Grantee’s Agent has committed or engaged in fraud, misappropriation, 
embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or bad faith;
(c)  Dissolution of any Grantee or any parent or affiliate of Grantee owning a controlling interest in any 
Grantee, or termination or suspension of any Grantee’s business; 
(d)  Any Grantee’s corporate existence or good standing in Iowa is suspended, terminated, revoked or 
forfeited;
(e)  Any Grantee has failed to comply with any applicable international, federal, state, or local laws, 
rules, ordinances, regulations or orders when performing within the scope of this Agreement; 
(f) The Department determines or believes any Grantee has engaged in conduct that has or may expose 
the Department or the State to material liability; 
(g) Any Grantee or any corporation, shareholder or entity having or owning  a controlling interest in any 
Grantee: (i) becomes insolvent or bankrupt; (ii) admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they 
mature; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iv) applies for or consents to the 
appointment of a trustee or receiver for the Grantee or for the major part of its property; (v) has a 
trustee or receiver appointed for it or for all or a substantial part of its assets, and the order of such 
appointment is not discharged, vacated or stayed within sixty (60) days after such appointment; or (vi) 
bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings 
for relief under any bankruptcy or similar law or laws for the relief of debtors, are instituted by or 
against any Grantee and, if instituted against Grantee is consented to, or, if contested by any Grantee, is 
not dismissed by the adverse parties or by an order, decree or judgment within sixty (60) days after such 
institution;
(h)  In the Department’s sole determination, any Grantee has not made substantial progress toward 
completion of the Project within one hundred eighty (180) days after the Start Date, or if any Grantee 
fails to complete the Project by the End Date;

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

86

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 8

(i)  In the Department’s sole determination, the Project is not operated and maintained at a professional 
level consistent with the highest standards applicable in Grantee’s industry, or is no longer serving and 
providing a public use or benefit consistent with the public purposes forming the basis for the Grant 
Award;
(j)  If the Grantee expends the Grant Award for purposes other than for payment of approved costs and 
expenses; and
(k)  The Grantee fails to receive all required matching funds and other funds, besides the Grant Award, 
necessary to complete the Project under the terms of this Agreement.

7.2 Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law. Notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, the Department shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately, without penalty and without advance notice, as a result of any of the following:
(a) The Legislature or Governor of the State fails to appropriate or the National Endowment for the Arts 
fails to award funds sufficient in the sole opinion of the Department to allow the Department either to 
meet its obligations under this Agreement or to operate as required to fulfill its obligations under this 
Agreement.
(b) Program Funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, or if any 
funds or revenues needed by the Department to make disbursement hereunder are insufficient or 
unavailable for any other reason as determined by the Department in its sole discretion.
(c) The Department’s authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement is withdrawn or materially altered or modified, or if the 
Department’s duties, programs or responsibilities are modified or materially altered. 
(d) There is a decision of any court, administrative law judge or an arbitration panel or any law, rule, 
regulation or order is enacted, promulgated or issued that materially or adversely affects the 
Department’s ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

7.3 Non-Exclusive Remedy. The Department’s right to terminate this Agreement shall be in 
addition to and not exclusive of other remedies available to the Department, and the Department shall 
be entitled to exercise any other rights and pursue any remedies, in law, at equity, or otherwise.
 
7.4 Effect of Termination. (a)  If this Agreement is terminated by the Department pursuant to 
Article 7.1 hereof, the Grantee shall repay all Grant Funds received by the Grantee within thirty (30) 
days of the Department’s written request;
(b)  If this Agreement is terminated by the Department pursuant to Article 7.2 hereof, or by agreement 
of the parties pursuant to Article 7.3 hereof, disbursements shall be paid for approved, documented 
Project costs and expenses incurred by the Grantee through the Termination date within thirty (30) days 
of receipt by the Department of documentation for such costs and expenses, subject to legally available 
Grant Funds.  Any costs and expenses which are subsequently determined to be unallowable through 
audit procedures shall be returned by the Grantee to the Department within thirty (30) days of notice of 
the disallowance.

Article 8. General Terms and Provisions.

8.1 Severability. Each provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable from all other 
provisions of the Agreement and, if one or more of the provisions of the Agreement shall be declared 
invalid, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

87

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 9

8.2 Choice of Law and Forum.  The laws of the State shall govern and determine all matters arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement without regard to the choice of law provisions of Iowa law. 
In the event any proceeding of a quasi-judicial or judicial nature is commenced in connection with this 
Agreement, the proceeding shall be brought in Des Moines, Iowa, in Polk County District Court for the 
State, if such court has jurisdiction.  If, however, such court lacks jurisdiction and jurisdiction lies only in 
a United States District Court, the matter shall be commenced in the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of Iowa, Central Division. This provision shall not be construed as waiving any 
immunity to suit or liability, in state or federal court, which may be available to the Department or the 
State.

8.3 Waivers. Except as specifically provided for in a waiver signed by duly authorized representatives 
of the Department and the Grantee, failure by either party at any time to require performance by the 
other party or to claim a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as affecting 
any subsequent breach or the right to require performance with respect thereto or to claim a breach 
with respect thereto.  No term or condition of this Agreement shall be held to be waived, modified, or 
deleted except by an instrument, in writing, signed by the parties hereto. 

8.4 Cumulative Rights.  The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of the 
Department and the State provided in this Agreement shall be construed as cumulative and no one of 
them is exclusive of the others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed the Department 
and the State by law, and shall in no way affect or impair the right of the Department or the State to 
pursue any other contractual, equitable or legal remedy to which the Department or the State may be 
entitled.  The election by the Department or the State of any one or more remedies shall not constitute 
a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

8.5 Limitation of Financial Obligation. It is agreed by the Grantee that the Department shall not, 
under any circumstances, be obligated financially under this Agreement except to disburse Grant Funds 
according to the terms of the Agreement.

8.6 Enforcement Expenses. The Grantee shall pay upon demand any and all reasonable fees and 
expenses of the Department, including the fees and expenses of the Department’s attorneys including, 
without limitation, the reasonable value of time of the Attorney General’s Office, experts and agents, in 
connection with the enforcement of any of the rights of the Department under this Agreement.

8.7 Event of Department Dissolution. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that the Department is 
a public instrumentality of the State and that in the event that the Department is dissolved for any 
reason, the State is entitled to enforce any right, title or interest held by the Department hereunder, and 
all of Grantee's obligations hereunder are owed to the State.

8.8 Survival. The parties' rights and obligations under Articles 5.3, 5.4, 5.14, 6, 7.4, 8.2, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 
8.7, and 8.9 shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason.

8.9 Final Authority. The Department shall have the final authority to assess whether the Grantee has 
complied with the terms of this Agreement. The Department’s decision shall be final agency action and 
binding on all questions concerning the Grantee’s compliance with the terms hereof. 

8.10 Documents Incorporated by Reference.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

88

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 10

Attachment A: Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant Fiscal Year 2023 
Guidelines

Attachment B: Grantee’s Fiscal Year 2023 Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating 
Support Grant Application

Attachment C: Grantee’s Award Letter
Attachment D: Department Funding Policies

8.11 Order of Priority.

Articles 1-8.15 of this Agreement
Attachment A: Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant Fiscal Year 2023 

Guidelines
Attachment B: Grantee’s Fiscal Year 2023 Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating 

Support Grant Application
Attachment C: Grantee’s Award Letter
Attachment D: Department Funding Policies

8.12 Not a Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or constituting 
the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, or other association of any kind or agent/principal 
relationship between the parties hereto. No party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, has 
the authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf of, in the name 
of, or binding upon, another party to this Agreement.

8.13 Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.

8.14 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to Grantee’s performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement.

8.15 Integration. This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Grantee and the 
Department and any representations that may have been made before or after the signing of this 
Agreement, which are not contained herein, are nonbinding, void and of no effect. Neither of the parties 
has relied on any such prior representation in entering into this Agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

89

Item 15.



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319 11

Signatures

The digital signatures below legally obligate the authorizing official of the Grantee and the Director of 
the Department or Director’s Designee to this agreement.

As the legal authorizing official of the Grantee, I agree to all terms and conditions outlined above and 
certify that the information contained in this document, including all attachments, is true and correct.

Authorized Official of the Grantee:
Jennifer Pickar

\s1\
Dat
e:

\d1\

As the legal authorizing official of the Department, I agree to all terms and conditions outlined above 
and certify that the information contained in this document, including all attachments, is true and 
correct.

Director of the Department or 
Director’s Designee:

\s2\
Dat
e:

\d2\

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

90

Item 15.



VENDOR CREATE / UPDATE FORM

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
STATE HISTORICAL BUILDING  600 E. LOCUST ST.  DES MOINES, IA 50319   IOWACULTURE.GOV 1

Vendor Create / Update Form

In order for the State of Iowa to pay the amount that is due to you and to comply with the Internal Revenue 
Service regulations on reporting these payments, the following information is required. Failure to provide this 
information will result in withholding of payment.  

When you file tax forms with the IRS, how do you describe yourself / your organization?
Please choose one and only one of the following:

Individual Non-Profit Organization
Sole Proprietor LLC Filing as Partner
Corporation LLC Filing as Corp
Estate or Trust LLC Filing as Sole Proprietor
Government

Enter your IRS description here:  \tbx_1_irsdescription_grantee\

Please confirm your contact information and provide your tax ID:

Contractor Name James & Meryl Hearst Center for the Arts
Doing Business As  \tbx_1_dba_grantee\

Street Address 304 West Seerley Boulevard
City Cedar Falls
State Iowa 
Zip 50613
FEIN / SSN (include dashes) \tbx_1_feinssn_grantee\

Certification Must Be Signed By Vendor

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that the number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification 
number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me)

The digital signature below serves as the grantee’s / vendor’s legal signature to this document.

Grante
e:

\s1\ Date: \d1\

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FFFE2F-A187-4F9C-BE1E-52148B0E77C2

91

Item 15.



M E M O R A N D U M  

 DATE: August 26, 2022 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Robert Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 SUBJECT: Lease of artworks for mural project  

Summary:  The Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board and staff have reviewed three artworks that will be 
installed on the underpass of the Main Street Bridge in downtown Cedar Falls, Iowa. The board 
respectfully requests that the City Council consider this project for approval.  

Financial Considerations: The Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board agreed on August 29, 2022 to pay the 
three artists listed below each $1000 for the lease of the selected work of art for up to three years.  

Selection Process: The Cedar Falls Public Art Committee (PAC) put out a public call for three 8‘ x 4‘ 
murals to be installed on the underpass wall of the Main Street Bridge by the intersection of Main Street 
and East First Street in Cedar Falls for up to three years depending on site conditions and accessibility. 
The PAC considered proposed mural designs in the form of digital renderings, photos, or existing 
artwork that would fit the dimensions of the finished aluminum panels used for the project and made a 
recommendation to the Art & Culture Board.  

The Art & Culture Board recommends that City Council approve the agreement with Karin Desnoyers, 
Caylin Jayde Graham, and Autumn Rozario Hall. If you have any questions or comments, please feel free 
to contact me. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

 

CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

  

92

Item 16.



93

Item 16.



94

Item 16.



95

Item 16.



96

Item 16.



97

Item 16.



98

Item 16.



PUBLIC ART COMMITTEE 
AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF ARTWORK 

 
This agreement is made on this ____ day of ____________________, 2022, by and between the Cedar 
Falls Public Art Committee (“PAC”), a committee of the Art & Culture Board of the City of Cedar Falls, 
located at the Hearst Center for the Arts, 304 West Seerley Boulevard, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, 

and, 

Autumn Rozario Hall ( “Artist”), 4308 Wakonda Pkwy. Des Moines, IA 50315 

PAC seeks to improve the community aesthetic for public art and serve as an exhibitor for the Artist for 
the purpose of leasing the Artwork. 

1. Artwork: The Artist has agreed to permit PAC to display the piece of art titled The Rabbit 
Constellation; The Journey Constellation ( “Artwork”). A photograph of the Artwork is attached 
hereto as Attachment A and is incorporated by this reference herein. 

2. Display of Artwork: An aluminum panel substrate measuring 8 feet x 4 feet version of the 
Artwork will be on display in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ( “City”) for a period of up to three 
years commencing on the date of installation in Fall 2022 (“Display Period”). PAC may remove 
the Artwork at any time and for any reason with no notice to the Artist.  

3. Delivery and Installation/Deinstallation of the Artwork:  

a.  Delivery by Artist:  The Artist shall, within 10 days of approval of this Agreement by the City 
Council of the City, provide to PAC the Artwork in a digital format specified by PAC.   If the 
Artwork is not digitally delivered timely or in in the required format, or the digital format of the 
Artwork otherwise is not able to be used for its intended purpose herein,  then this Agreement 
may be immediately terminated by PAC upon written notice to the Artist with no penalty or 
payment by PAC to Artist. 

b.  Installation/Deinstallation by PAC:  PAC shall cause the Artwork to be installed in reasonably 
the same depiction as on Attachment A on the underpass wall of the Main Street Bridge at First 
Street in the City. Such installation shall be at PAC’s discretion, cost and sole risk.  No later than 
the conclusion of the Display Period, or upon termination of this Agreement otherwise, 
deinstallation of the Artwork shall be the responsibility of PAC at the PAC’s cost and sole risk. 

4.    Honorarium: PAC will pay the Artist an Honorarium of $1000.00 for the lease of the Artwork, 
which shall be paid upon completion of installation. 

5. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist will retain ownership of 
the Artwork, including copyright, but gives PAC permission to allow the Artist’s Artwork to be 
displayed in aluminum panel substrate form as provided herein, and also gives permission for 
the Artwork to be included in any motion picture television production, and/or photographs 
taken in the City at any time. In addition, the Artist gives permission to the production company 
and/or photographer to exhibit all or any part of said film or photographs throughout the world.  

99

Item 16.



6. Independent Contractor:  Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee    
relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent contractor through the 
term of this Agreement and the Artist is totally responsible for the Artist’s own materials, labor, 
costs, transportation and insurance.  
 

7. No Assignment:  The rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement may not be transferred 
or assigned without the prior written consent of the non-transferring or non-assigning party.   
 

8. Successors and Assigns:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Artist, and Artist’s heirs, beneficiaries, successors, and assigns.  
 

9. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
regarding the subject matter, and there are no promises or understandings between the parties 
except as set forth herein.  

 
10.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and venue 

for any dispute arising hereunder shall be the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County. 
 

Artist 

By:          ______________________________ 
Autumn Rozario Hall 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

By:          ______________________________ 
                Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 
                  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100

Item 16.



Attachment A 

 

 

 

101

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 25, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Rotary Plaza Agreement (W 1st St.) 

 
 
At the July 18, 2022 Community Relations & Planning Committee, the Rotary Club of 
Cedar Falls made a proposal for a 100th anniversary project that also included a 
celebration of essential workers.  The project site is along W 1st Street between the 
Little Red School House and the Behrens Rapp Station.  The City Council was 
supportive of the project and asked staff to draft an agreement for the project.  The 
attached agreement identifies that the design and construction will be completed by 
Rotary.  All construction expenses will be covered by Rotary, with the City’s helping with 
some minor preparations of clearing the project area.  During the Committee meeting, 
several Council members were concerned about the impact to trees at the site.  
Paragraph 15 states that Rotary will minimize that impact and any trees lost will be 
replaced by Rotary, similar in kind and quality.  The agreement also states that 
construction plans will be provided to the City for review and at that point will more 
precisely identify the area of impact at the project site. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

 
Attachments:   Agreement 

102

Item 17.



103

Item 17.



104

Item 17.



105

Item 17.



106

Item 17.



107

Item 17.



108

Item 17.



109

Item 17.



110

Item 17.



111

Item 17.



112

Item 17.



113

Item 17.



114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



116

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: August 29, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program:  
  1910 Tremont Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single-family owner-occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner-occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Hannah Dietz purchased the property at 1910 Tremont Street in August 2021. The owners 
have applied to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program. The property meets the requirement of the program as it is located in the R-2 Zoning 
District and falls within the geographical boundary for the grant applicability. Additionally, the 
property is in a block with less than 75% rentals, and the property also qualifies with being 
rental for at least last three years. However, the property was not in possession of the 
homeowner, as the property was active rental with an active lease until end of May 2022 at the 
time of purchase. Owner has then applied with application in June 2022, after which was 
working with staff to get needed supplemental materials to review the request. 
 
After purchase, the current owner has made many interior improvements (approximately 
costing $5,000 – 6,000) including replacing light fixtures, refinishing the floors, kitchen 
cabinets, kitchen appliances, fixing steps to basement, and painting work. Additionally, the 
owner is planning to work on many exterior improvements including window repair, window 
frame repair, window replacement, gutter replacement, update garage siding (including all 
soffits, facia and openings on home) and update landscaping to add curb-appeal of the 
property. The owner also has additional exterior improvement plans including painting stucco 
portions of the house, update back porch and updating back room with a new roof. All these 
additional improvements will be done after the proposed work is finished, as she wants to 
phase out the expenses.  
 
Hannah Dietz reached out to the city to consider her requests for the Rental to Single Family 
Owner Conversion Incentive Program. With the application, the owner is proposing to make 
exterior improvements to update all the basement and kitchen windows with new ones, side 

117

Item 18.



garage with vinyl siding, cover all soffit, facia repair work, and add new gutters with downspout. 
The applicant suggests that the repairs and exterior modifications proposed will improve the 
aesthetics and functionality. Based on the submitted bids by Quegg siding, windows and 
roofing, the actual cost of the exterior improvement listed is $18,947. A detailed quote, existing 
pictures of the house and proposed improvement pictures are attached with the application for 
more reference. 
 
City staff finds this request reasonable, as this will lead improve living conditions and 
aesthetics of the property. Overall, staff finds that the proposed exterior improvements will 
enhance the quality of the neighborhood and therefore recommend approval.   
 
If approved, the Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution 
approving this property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000 with the placement of a lien on 
the property for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if 
sold before the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council 
approval with the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City 
of the improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

118

Item 18.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Community Development Department, 

City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 
 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 1910 Tremont Street  

and legally described as   LATTAS 1ST ADDITION S 12 FT LOT 8 LOT 9  
 

 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Hannah E. Dietz (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 119

Item 18.



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
  Hannah E. Dietz 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2022, by Hannah E. 
Dietz 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

120

Item 18.



To the members of City Council, 

My name is Hannah Dietz, and I purchased 1910 Tremont St. in the summer of 2021, it was a 

rental that was leased when I bought it so I haven’t been able to occupy the home until this 

summer. I have lived on Tremont St. since I was 8 years old and this home is one house away 

from my parents. I have loved this neighborhood and growing up here, i am very excited for this 

to be my first home. I look forward to fixing up this house and making it beautiful from the 

outside. 

I knew that this house was a rental for 10 years and even though I grew up so close to this 

home I never paid attention to it as there was not much curb appeal to this house. When looking 

at the home I was happy to learn of the rental conversion grant that could help with necessary 

outdoor improvements from my realtor. 

Since gaining occupancy at the beginning of June my family has been helping with indoor 

updates. We have replaced light fixtures, stripped, stained and refinished the floors, replaced 

the kitchen floor, kitchen cabinets, sink, kitchen appliances (fridge and stove), fixed the 

basement steps, painted and patched walls. This has cost about $5000-6000 and there are still 

more things I hope to complete over time on the interior of the home.     

I also have a lot of work both on the functionality and aesthetic appeal of the exterior of the 

house and yard. The windows are in terrible repair and I have a quote for $18,947 from Quegg 

Siding, Windows, & Roofing. They hope to be able to complete those repairs within the next 

year or if they have any opening in their schedule. This quote is for siding, gutters, and for 

capping and replacing windows. 

Once Quegg has finished with their repairs I would like to paint the stucco portions of the house 

a cream/tan color to go with the green siding I have chosen for the garage and back porch.  

In the next few years I would like to fix up the back porch, at some point in the past a patio was 

turned into a back room and there are many repairs needed as it was clearly a DIY job, the roof 

on this portion will need to be replaced and properly sealed, we have replaced the windows in 

this room already. It will also need new walls/insulation and ceiling.   

Another project will be replacing the front stairs, unfortunately the  stairs are solid cement and 

will be quite difficult to remove, but once the exterior repairs are complete I would like to remove 

and replace the stairs with something a bit more usable, like a front deck. Many of the upgrades 

and updates for the house can be done gradually with my own investments of time and money. 

I appreciate the opportunity that this grant provides to assist with the cost of those projects 

which I cannot do myself. The following are the updates that I am proposing for this grant with 

the hopes that you will see they are a good investment in the property and the neighborhood: 

∙ Window repair 

The windows on the main floor almost all have sashes where argon gas has blown leaving the 

windows foggy and unattractive. Quegg’s quote for this is $2,200. 

∙ Gutter replacement  

Very few of the gutters on this home function properly, and the gutters are impeded by the roof 

overhang. New 6” continuous gutters with downspouts will be installed by Quegg. Quote for this 

is $1,700.  

∙ Window frame repair  

121

Item 18.



The previous owner of my house liked to ‘fix’ things by using spray foam to seal gaps and rotted 

wood. The windows on the main floor and attic will be capped with white which will look much 

better and be more functional than the spray foam. Quegg’s quote for this is $2,300.  

∙ Window replacement  

All of the basement windows are in need of replacement. Many are broken or covered in spray 

foam. Replacement of these windows will also match all other windows making the home more 

polished and presentable. Quegg’s quote to replace these windows is $7,000.  

∙ Garage siding - All soffits, facia and openings on home 

My house is stucco but the garage is sided as well as a back porch and the attic dormers. 

Everything except for the stucco and brick will be finished with siding or aluminum. Quegg’s 

quote for this portion is $5,747 

 

Additionally I will be updating landscaping, and painting the home which will hopefully beautify 

the neighborhood. Thank you for your consideration; I appreciate the opportunity to improve my 

first home and the wonderful neighborhood with the assistance of the City of Cedar Falls. I am 

definitely excited to continue the process of improving this home.  

Thank you, 

Hannah Dietz 

122

Item 18.



123

Item 18.



124

Item 18.



Image of one of the windows on the house that will be capped and needs sashes replaced. All
windows will be replaced or capped.

125

Item 18.



Image of the brand windows sashes will be replaced with.

126

Item 18.



Example of a window that has been capped in the same way I want and done by the contractor I
hired.

127

Item 18.



The garage now, needs to be resided.

128

Item 18.



Color I have chosen for the new garage siding.

129

Item 18.



130

Item 18.



131

Item 18.



132

Item 18.



133

Item 18.



134

Item 18.



135

Item 18.



136

Item 18.



137

Item 18.



138

Item 18.



139

Item 18.



140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



142

Item 18.



143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



147

Item 18.



148

Item 18.



149

Item 18.



 

150

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: August 29, 2022 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review for a new duplex. 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District design review 
application for a new duplex at 1224 W. 20th Street (#DR22-001) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Aaron Carolan, property owner; Carolan Builders 

LOCATION: 1224 W. 20th Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to demolish the existing dwelling and construct a new two-family dwelling on the 
property at 1224 W. 20th Street. The property is located in the College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay Zoning District and a review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
is required for reviewing any new construction (substantial improvement) within the district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
District was established for the 
preservation of neighborhood character 
and the stabilization of its 
neighborhoods after a long history of 
changes and updates to properties that 
typically increased occupancies and 
detracted from the original intent of 
those properties and neighborhoods. 
This trend and the establishment of the 
Overlay called for more scrutiny when 
reviewing changes that may affect the 
character of the neighborhood. See the 
location map on the side for reference, 
the highlighted property in the yellow 
boundary is the subject project. 
 

151

Item 19.



The subject property is located within the R-3, Multiple Residence Zoning districts (Section 26-
166) and the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (Section 26-181). The Overlay 
Zoning District intends to develop business districts and residential districts in an orderly manner 
and one that complements the University of Northern Iowa campus and promotes community 
vitality and safety. As per code, new construction within the district is termed as a substantial 
improvement. A substantial improvement requires review and approval by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the City Council. The criterion listed in the Overlay requires that the 
following be considered in this design review: architectural compatibility; neighborhood 
character; building materials; façade details; parking; open space/landscaping requirements; 
and other provisions as applicable in the code. 
 
The subject property has been equipped with a 4-bedroom single-unit dwelling unit (approx. 
1,787 sq.ft.) built in 1947. A two-stall detached garage (approx. 528 sq.ft.) was added in 1968. 
As per the applicant, the existing house on the subject property was not well maintained by the 
previous owner and is in a dilapidated condition. Also as per the applicant’s assessment, the 
house is in a beyond reasonable economical repair state. The petitioner/owner of the property at 
1224 W 20th Street is intending to demolish the existing house and garage and replace it with a 
new duplex with attached garages. As per code, the following analysis has been done to review 
the proposal.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Lot width/area:  
A two-family dwelling is permitted in an R-3 residential zoning district that has a lot width of not 
less than 70 feet and a lot area of 8,000 square feet. The property at 1224 W. 20th Street is 100 
feet wide with a total lot area of 13,500 square feet. The lot width and lot area satisfy the 
minimum requirements within an R-3 zoning district for a two-family dwelling unit. 
 
On-site parking:  
As per code, the minimum on-site parking required for a two-unit dwelling is two stalls per 
dwelling unit plus one additional stall for each bedroom over two bedroom. It is proposed that 
each unit will occupy four bedrooms for a total of eight bedrooms. With this in mind, a total of 
four (4) parking stalls per unit are required. In response, the applicant proposed four (4) parking 
stalls per unit with two (2) stalls in the attached two-stall garage and two (2) stalls tandem on the 
double-wide driveway for each unit to accommodate required on-site parking for the proposed 
two-unit dwelling. The parking arrangement satisfies the ordinance requirement for this two-
family residential dwelling. Both the driveways will be about 18 feet wide and paved in concrete. 
A 14-foot grass strip of land will separate the two driveways in the front yard. 
 
Landscaping:  
As per code, all newly constructed single-unit dwellings, two-unit dwellings, or multiple dwellings 
in residential districts shall provide on-site landscaping within the required yard areas of the 
property at the rate of 0.04 points per square foot of the total lot area of the site under 
consideration for the proposed residential development. Staff encouraged the owner to preserve 
the mature trees on the site and the right-of-way trees in the parkway to the extent possible, 
since they contribute to the walkability of the neighborhood and help to reduce utility costs for 
the abutting residents.  
 
In response, the applicant has submitted a landscaping plan that delineates the location of both 
existing and proposed plantings. The subject property has a lot area of 13,500 square feet and 

152

Item 19.



therefore it requires 540 landscaping points (13,500* 0.04). The proposed landscaping points 
are 1100 points, which include the existing six (6) 18-foot tall conifers and five (5) overstory 
trees. The applicant is proposing to remove an existing dead pine tree, an overstory tree in the 
right-of-way area, and some existing shrubs in front of the existing house to build the proposed 
new two-unit dwelling. The removal of these existing shrubs and trees is excluded from the 
proposed landscaping points. Proposed landscaping requirements are met as per code.  
 
Building Design: 

• Building Entrances: 
As per the proposal, the main building entries of the duplex are oriented toward and 
visible from W. 20th Street. The building design is configured in a way that the garage sits 
closer to the street while the main entrance of the unit is through a covered stoop which 
is recessed.  This is a different design than generally found in the neighborhood. The 
front façade of the building fronting the street is enhanced with a stacked stone façade.  
 

• Building Scale: 
The existing house is a one-story single-family unit with a façade front of approximately 
54 feet fronting W. 20th Street. Other houses around the proposed site include a mix of 
one-story homes and two-story homes. As per code, the street-facing walls greater than 
50 feet in length shall be articulated with bays, projects, or alternating recesses. The 
proposed new two-unit dwelling will be two-story high and has a façade front of 
approximately 58 feet, which is almost similar to the existing house. The façade is 
articulated with a recessed entrance of the units and the design of the unit also includes 
architectural elements like roof dormers. The main facade fronting W. 20th Street is also 
enhanced by the use of stacked stone, and straight edge shakes on the roof dormer. 
Staff finds that the proposed variation will align with the character of buildings in 
immediate surroundings.  
 

• Building Materials: 
For multiple dwellings, street-facing facades shall be comprised of at least 30 percent 
brick, stone, or similar materials. The proposed design does have the main story of the 
building layered with stacked stone on the street-facing façade and the roof dormers on 
the second story are layered with straight edge shakes, which are contrasting to vinyl lap 
siding used on other areas of the front façade. All other façades of the building will be 
vinyl lap siding. Vinyl siding is a common material on other homes in the neighborhood, 
along with brick and wood siding. Staff finds that the building materials and the variation 

153

Item 19.



of materials on the façade will enhance the quality in the neighborhood. 
 

• Architectural compatibility with surrounding buildings: 
The majority of houses in the neighborhood represent colonial bungalow-style 
architecture with a mix of attached and detached garages (See below pictures of existing 
dwelling units in the neighborhood for reference).The garages on these properties are 
either in the line with the main house façade or are recessed. 

 
The proposed two-unit dwelling has some contrasting architectural nature, as the 
attached garages front the street, while the main house entrance is recessed, which 
makes this unique. (See similar house built by the same builder in a different location in 
the College Hill neighborhood Overlay zoning district and existing house on the property 
that will be demolished for reference below) 

 
Staff notes that the best practice is to have garages recessed or have garages accessed 
through an alley, thereby preserving the pedestrian character of the neighborhood and 
enhancing the livability of the neighborhood. However, staff finds that the proposed site 
has a couple of unique site constraints including having no alley, and a floodway area 
south of the lot, which make it more challenging to provide parking that is recessed 
behind the home. Staff discussed a couple of alternatives with the applicant, each with 
positives and negatives. Given the constraints of the site and the fact there is quite a 
variation in architectural styles and designs in the neighborhood, staff finds the proposed 
design acceptable.  

 

• Neighborhood Character: 
The College Hill neighborhood area is one of the City’s oldest and most densely 
populated neighborhoods and being near the University of Northern Iowa, the 
preservation of neighborhood character (including uniformity of building size, scale, bulk, 
varying appearances, etc.) are of primary concerns regardless of the nature of the 

154

Item 19.



proposed building use. The proposed two-unit dwelling is similar in terms of size and 
scale comparison to other dwelling units in the immediate neighborhood. However, a two-
unit dwelling with front loaded garages is unique as it lacks a residential presence along 
W. 20th Street. Staff finds that this unique appearance of a two-unit dwelling with front-
loaded garages and recessed main entries of the unit is not the best practice. Existing 
site constraints including having no alley access, or with floodway area located south of 
property restricting development and consideration of retaining more green space over a 
hard-surface paving area, limit development flexibility. The staff finds that the proposal is 
unique and would be acceptable for this unique site setting. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Notification of this case was sent to adjacent property owners within 200 feet on August 15th, 
2022. Water, electric, gas, and communication utility services are available per the service 
policies of CFU.  There is an existing water service entering the existing house on the northeast 
corner of the building.  If it is not reused, it will be required to be abandoned at the water main 
according to the CFU Water Service Policy.  Gas is also available along W 20th St.  All existing 
utilities are required to be disconnected and abandoned before the demolition of the existing 
structure. 
 
Staff notes that the applicant will have to apply for a demolition permit, building permit, 
floodplain development permit, and elevation certificate to execute the proposal on site. Once 
construction is complete, a final elevation certificate is required verifying that the home is built to 
the required elevation above the floodplain. Staff also notes that the applicant must contact the 
Public Works department prior to removal of the tree located in the City right-of-way.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted design review 
application as per staff’s recommendation at their regular meeting on 24th August 2022 with a 
vote of 9 ayes and 0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends 
approval of the proposed design review application for building a new duplex at 1224 W. 20th 
Street and recommends approval, subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
2. Conformance with all City staff recommendations and technical requirements 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Vote 
8/24/2022 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the site is in R-3, Multiple Residence Zoning 
District and the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay zoning district. Proposal is to 
add a new duplex (4-bedroom, 2-bath/ unit) after demolishing existing single-
family unit and detached structure on property at 1224 W 20th Street. All 
minimum zoning requirement including lot width, lot area, on-site parking, 
landscaping points, building design etc. are all met. Mr. Atodaria noted that the 
proposed two-unit dwelling is configured in a way that the garage sites closer to 
the street while the main entrance of the unit is recessed and the street facing 
façade will be layered with stacked stone and has roof-dormers as an 
architectural feature. Mr. Atodaria also explained additional criteria of the overlay 
district, noting that the proposal is slightly unique in character with building 
garage fronting the street, and main house entry being recessed in comparison 
to other buildings in the neighborhood. He also mentioned that the best practice 

155

Item 19.



is to have garages recessed or have garages accessed through an alley, 
however, with existing site constraints including floodway area on south side of 
the lot, natural vegetation on site, no accessible alley way, restricts development 
potential, which is why this unique proposal would be appropriate for this site. 
Staff recommends approval subject to any comments or direction by the 
Commission and conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical 
requirements. 

Mr. Campbell commented that tandem parking is not a good concept, as 
students park two cars on street. You should ask city council that it should be 
rather a rule about requiring independently accessible parking spaces. Mr. 
Campbell noted that this is a general comment. 

Mr. Campbell also noted that he recalls that few years back that two curb-cuts 
were discouraged, and the proposal could have been possible if the approach is 
reduced to single approach. Mr. Leeper mentioned that we will get clarification 
from staff. Mr. Atodaria noted that limiting curb-cut per property is always a good 
idea as it increases opportunity for on-street parking and reduces paving. 
However, staff did discuss the same with the applicant and in order to save the 
matured landscaping, a decision to have two curb cuts was taken. Mr. Campbell 
mentioned that what he meant was reducing each driveway to single car wide 
approach, thereby not impacting any tree removal but address narrow curb-cut. 
Mr. Howard also noted that tandem parking is only allowed for single-family unit 
and two-family unit dwellings as per code.  

Ms. Lynch mentioned that this is a vast improvement from what is currently on-
site, and I would make motion to approve the plan subject to staff’s 
recommendation. Mr. Larson seconded the motion.  

Ms. Crisman made a comment thanking the staff to highlight the preservation of 
neighborhood aspect. Looking forward to seeing updated college hill overlay 
zoning district to see how we will be able to preserve historical houses as well as 
work on how we can nicely blend the newer development withing existing historic 
character of the neighborhood. Mr. Crisman asked staff, if the current code 
allows any additional dwellings in the back of this lot. Ms. Howard mentioned that 
it would be something like a flag lot which will be something that would happen 
with a subdivision process. 

Mr. Leeper asked if there are any suggestions that we can propose to developer 
to reduce the width of the driveway at curb-cuts. Ms. Holst mentioned that the 
problem is to get required off-street parking spaces, with 2 spaces in garage and 
2 space tandem behind garage, if the width is reduced at curb-cut, there would 
not be enough for a person to park a car on the driveway, as the setback is only 
25 feet (which is about a car’s length).  

The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, 
Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

156

Item 19.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

157

Item 19.



Dry Run
Creek (Univ)University of

Northern Iowa

Su
mm

it D
r

Floral Ct

Me
rne

r A
ve

W 19th St

W 22nd St

W 20th St

Ca
mp

us
 St

C-3

R-4

R-2

R-1

P

R-3

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
August 24, 2022

College Hill Neighborhood Overlay
Design Review for a new duplex(DR22-001)
1224 W. 20th Street

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

158

Item 19.



159

Item 19.



160

Item 19.



161

Item 19.



162

Item 19.



163

Item 19.



164

Item 19.



165

Item 19.



 

 

   
 

 

Letter of Intent for property at 1224 W 20 th. Street 

 

My intentions are to remove existing house and garage and replace with brand new  

Energy Efficient side by side duplex with attached garages. 

 

Existing house was not maintained by previous owner, and in such is dilapidated 

Beyond reasonable economical repair. 

 

Each side/ address of the new duplex will have separate utilities: Water, Electrical, 

Garbage. 

 

The new building overall height to peak of roof will be 24’ 6” 

 

The new structure will be built at the elevation as to have the lowest level( main floor) 1’ 

above the 500 year base flood elevation. I have had prior communications about this with 

Thomas A. Weintraut from the city. 

 

My name is Aaron Carolan I am the current owner and will be the builder of the new 

Duplex, I have been in the residential building trade for 31 years, I have owned and  

Operated my own residential building business for 27 years. 

 

Owners within 200’ from proposed project: 

Tom & William Ogle 1226 W 20 th. 

Cedar Heights Baptist Church 2016 Campus St. 

Russell Campbell 1934 Campus St. 

Bryce Steiert 2001 Merner  

Nicholas Balk 2009 Merner 

Christopherson Rentals LLC 2015 Merner 

State of Iowa 

Austin Ryan 1233 W 20 th. 

Melvin Reimer 1215 W 20 th. 

Suzanne Riehl 1939 Merner 

 

 

 
 

 

Carolan Builders 

Aaron Carolan 

5232 Metz Road 

Cedar Falls IA   50613 

 
319-415-5810 (cell) 

Carolanbuilders95@gmail.com 

166

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

167

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II  
 
 DATE: September 6th, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project  
  City Project Number: SW-000-3293 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, August 19th, 2022 at 2:00 P.M., bids were received and opened for the 2022 
Sidewalk Assessment Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Iowa Flatworks, 
Inc. the apparent low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $40,591.00 

Iowa Flatworks, Inc.   $49,143.69 

Brothers Cleaning $60,410.55 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $40,591.00. Iowa Flatworks, Inc. of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $49,143.69. Attached is a bid tabulation 
for your reference. The project will be funded through assessment of the corresponding 
property owners. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Iowa Flatworks, Inc. in the amount of $49,143.69. On September 19th, 
2022, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council 
approval. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer     

168

Item 20.



Line Item Item Code Item Description Units Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL CY 17.25 $100.00 $1,725.00 $110.00 $1,897.50 $35.00 $603.75

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 217.1 $40.00 $8,684.00 $85.99 $18,668.43 $23.00 $4,993.30

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH SY 209.9 $80.00 $16,792.00 $96.82 $20,322.52 $185.00 $38,831.50

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH SY 7.2 $150.00 $1,080.00 $117.60 $846.72 $205.00 $1,476.00

5 8030-108-B-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDROAULIC SEEDING SF 924 $2.50 $2,310.00 $4.23 $3,908.52 $6.50 $6,006.00

$40,591.00 $49,143.69 $60,410.55Base Bid Total:

2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project (#8256557)
Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

08/19/2022 02:00 PM CDT

Engineer Estimate Iowa Flatworks Inc Brothers Cleaning

169

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 30, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project 
  City Project Number: BR-106-3215   
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remove and replace the existing 2 span slab bridge 
at Olive Street with a twin box culvert. The existing bridge will be replaced with a box 
culvert extending from the existing College Street Culvert to the east side of Olive Street, 
downstream channel improvements will be incorporated, sidewalk improvements for 
walkability to the College Hill corridor, and placement of a new road above the culvert. 
The project will include improvements to the water main, storm sewer and sanitary sewer. 
Right-of-way acquired for the project will be used for culvert alignment and stream 
channel restorations. The project will require the acquisition of right-of-way, temporary and 

permanent easements. The owner of the following property has accepted the conveyance 
of the following parcel of land as described in the enclosed Purchaser’s Affidavit and 
Warranty Deed: 
 

Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

Dwayne R. Eilers, II 2009 Olive Street Fee Title 

 
The City will use General Obligation and Tax Increment Financing for the design and right-of-way 
portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc., of Waterloo, Iowa, on January 6th, 2020 for property acquisition and 
design services. Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements 
Program in FY22 and FY23 under item number 80. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the 
necessary closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City Council state 
their support in the form of a resolution approving and accepting the Purchaser’s Affidavit and 
Warranty Deed for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

170

Item 21.



171

Item 21.



172

Item 21.



173

Item 21.



174

Item 21.



175

Item 21.



176

Item 21.



177

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 26, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Iowa DOT Project Number: STBG-SWAP-1185(652)—SG-07 
  City-State Agreement, STBG-SWAP 
 
Please find attached the Main Street Reconstruction Project Agreement for review and 
approval. The agreement will provide funding for the reconstruction project. The Main Street 
Reconstruction project will include reconstruction of Main Street from 6th Street to just south of 
University Ave. The existing four-lane roadway will be replaced with a three lane roadway and 
will add bike lanes. Included in the project will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th 
Street, and 12th Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the 
overall traffic safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include 
improvements to the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other 
miscellaneous roadway items.  
 
The Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Programming Agreement administered through 
the Iowa Department of Transportation will provide up to $2,900,000.00 in STBG Federal-aid 
Swap Funds.  

 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval of the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project Agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation. Please 
sign and return originals to the Engineering Division for further processing.  
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

178

Item 22.



May 2021 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
Agreement for a Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Federal-aid Swap Project 

Recipient:  City of Cedar Falls 

Project No.:  STBG-SWAP-1185(657)--SG-07 

Iowa DOT Agreement No.:  2-22-STBG-SWAP-019 

This is an agreement between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the Recipient) and the Iowa 
Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as the Department) for Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Program Federal-aid Swap funds under 761 Iowa Administrative Code (IAC) Chapter 162.  Iowa Code 
Section 306A.7 provides for the Recipient and the Department to enter into agreements with each other for the 
purpose of financing transportation improvement projects on streets and highways in Iowa. 

Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, applicable statutes, and administrative rules, the Department agrees to 
provide STBG Federal-aid Swap funding to the Recipient for the authorized and approved costs for eligible items 
associated with the project. 

Under this agreement, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. The Recipient shall be the lead local governmental agency for carrying out the provisions of this agreement.

2. All notices required under this agreement shall be made in writing to the appropriate contact person. The 
Department's contact persons will be the Local Systems Project Development Engineer, Christy VanBuskirk, 
and Eastern Region Local Systems Field Engineer, Kent L. Ellis.  The Recipient's contact person shall be the 
City Engineer.

3. The Recipient shall be responsible for the development and completion of the following described STBG 

project:

PCC Pavement-Grade and Replace On Main St, from 6th St South 1.35 Miles to north of University Ave 

4. Eligible project activities will be limited to the following: construction, engineering, inspection, and right-of-way 
acquisition. Under certain circumstances, eligible activities may also include utility relocation or railroad work 
that is required for construction of the project.

5. The Recipient shall receive reimbursement for costs of authorized and approved eligible project activities from 
STBG Federal-aid Swap funds. The portion of the project costs reimbursed by STBG Federal-aid Swap funds 
shall be up to $2,900,000 for the following phases of work as stipulated by the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments: 

 Preliminary Engineering 
 Construction Engineering 
 Right-of-Way 

  X  Construction 
 Other (please specify) . 

6. The Recipient shall pay for all project costs not reimbursed with STBG Federal-aid Swap funds.

7. If the project described in Section 3 drops out of the Corridor Metropolitan Planning Organization current TIP
or the approved current STIP prior to obligation of funds, and the Recipient fails to reprogram the project in
the appropriate TIP and STIP within 3 years, this agreement shall become null and void.

8. The Recipient shall let the project for bids through the Department.

9. If any part of this agreement is found to be void and unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
agreement shall remain in effect.

10. It is the intent of both parties that no third party beneficiaries be created by this agreement.

179

Item 22.



STBG Swap Project Agreement 
Page 2 
 

11. This agreement and the attached Exhibit 1 constitute the entire agreement between the Department and the 
Recipient concerning this project.  Representations made before the signing of this agreement are not 
binding, and neither party has relied upon conflicting representations in entering into this agreement.  Any 
change or alteration to the terms of this agreement shall be made in the form of an addendum to this 
agreement. The addendum shall become effective only upon written acceptance of the Department and the 
Recipient. 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed this agreement as of the date shown opposite its 
signature below. 
 

City Signature Block  
 
By_______________________________ Date _____________________________, 20______ 
_________________________ 
 Title of city official 

I,________________________________, certify that I am the City Cedar Falls, and 

that______________________________, who signed said Agreement for and on behalf of the city was duly 

authorized to execute the same by virtue of a formal resolution duly passed and adopted by the city on the _______ 

day of _____________________________, 20______. 

 
Signed_____________________________ Date _____________________________, 20______ 
 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 

 
 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Highway Administration 
 
By_________________________________ Date _____________________________, 20______ 

Kent L. Ellis, P.E. 
Local Systems Field Engineer  
Eastern Region 

180

Item 22.



   

EXHIBIT 1 
General Agreement Provisions for use of Federal-aid Swap Funds on Non-primary Projects 

 
Unless otherwise specified in this agreement, the Recipient shall be responsible for the following: 
 
1. General Requirements.  
 

a. The Recipient shall take the necessary actions to comply with applicable State and Federal laws and 
regulations. To assist the Recipient, the Department has provided guidance in the Instructional 
Memorandums to Local Public Agencies (I.M.s), available on-line at: 
https://iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/im/lpa_ims. The Recipient shall follow the applicable 
procedures and guidelines contained in the I.M.s in effect at the time project activities are conducted. 
 

b. In accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 216 and associated subsequent nondiscrimination laws and 
regulations, the Recipient shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, creed, age, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, religion, pregnancy, or disability.  
 

c. The Recipient shall comply with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), the associated Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) that implement these laws, and the guidance provided in I.M. 1.080, ADA Requirements. 
When pedestrian facilities are constructed, reconstructed, or altered, the Recipient shall make such facilities 
compliant with the ADA and Section 504.    
 

d. The Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Department harmless from any action or liability 
arising out of the design, construction, maintenance, placement of traffic control devices, inspection, or use 
of this project. This agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless applies to all aspects of the 
Department's application review and acceptance process, plan and construction reviews, and funding 
participation. 
 

e. Termination of funds. Notwithstanding anything in this agreement to the contrary, and subject to the 
limitations set forth below, the Department shall have the right to terminate this agreement without penalty 
and without any advance notice as a result of any of the following: 1) The Federal government, legislature 
or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Department to appropriate funds sufficient to allow the Department 
to either meet its obligations under this agreement or to operate as required and to fulfill its obligations 
under this agreement; or 2)  If funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is 
delayed, or if any funds or revenues needed by the Department to make any payment hereunder are 
insufficient or unavailable for any other reason as determined by the Department in its sole discretion; or 3)  
If the Department’s authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations related to the 
subject matter of this agreement is withdrawn or materially altered or modified. The Department shall 
provide the Recipient with written notice of termination pursuant to this section.  
 

2. Programming  
 

a. The Recipient shall be responsible for including the project in the appropriate Regional Planning Affiliation 
(RPA) or Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The 
Recipient shall also ensure that the appropriate RPA or MPO, through their TIP submittal to the Department, 
includes the project in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). If the project is not 
included in the appropriate fiscal year of the STIP, funds cannot be obligated. 
 

b. Before beginning any work for which funding reimbursement will be requested, the Recipient shall submit 
a written request for acceptance to the Department. The Department will notify the Recipient when 
acceptance is granted. The cost of work performed prior to acceptance will not be reimbursed. The turning 
in of plans for letting by the Department’s administering bureau shall be considered acceptance for 
construction. The Department will notify the Recipient when acceptance is granted. 
 

3. Design and Consultant Services 
 

a. The Recipient shall be responsible for the design of the project, including all necessary plans, specifications, 
and estimates (PS&E). The project shall be designed in accordance with the design guidelines provided or 
referenced by the Department in the Guide and applicable I.M.s.  
 

181

Item 22.

https://iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/im/lpa_ims


 

 
4. Environmental Requirements and other Agreements or Permits. 

 
a. The Recipient shall obtain project permits and approvals, when necessary, from the Iowa Department of 

Cultural Affairs (State Historical Society of Iowa; State Historic Preservation Officer), Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources, U.S. Coast Guard, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the Department, or other agencies 
as required. The Recipient shall follow the applicable procedures in the Instructional Memorandums to 
Local Public Agencies Table of Contents, Chapter 4 – Environmental Regulations.  
 

5. Right-of-Way, Railroads, and Utilities. 
 
a. The Recipient shall acquire the project right-of-way, whether by lease, easement, or fee title, and shall 

provide relocation assistance benefits and payments in accordance with the procedures set forth in I.M. 
3.600, Right-of-Way Acquisition, and the Department's Right of Way Bureau Local Public Agency Manual. 
The Recipient shall contact the Department for assistance, as necessary, to ensure compliance with the 
required procedures. 
 

b. If a railroad crossing or railroad tracks are within or adjacent to the project limits, the Recipient shall obtain 
agreements, easements, or permits as needed from the railroad. The Recipient shall follow the procedures 
in I.M. 3.670, Work on Railroad Right-of-Way.  
 

c. The Recipient shall obtain agreements from utility companies as needed. The Recipient shall comply with 
the “Policy for Accommodating Utilities on the County and City a Non-Primary Federal-aid Road System” 
for projects on non-primary Federal-aid highways. For projects connecting to or involving some work inside 
the right-of-way for a primary highway, the Recipient shall follow the Department’s “Policy for 
Accommodating and Adjustment of Utilities on the Primary Road System” The Recipient should also use 
the procedures outlined in I.M. 3.640, Utility Accommodation and Coordination, as a guide to coordinating 
with utilities.  
 

6. Contract Procurement. 
 
a. The following provisions apply only to projects involving physical construction or improvements to 

transportation facilities: 
 

b. The project plans, specifications, and cost estimate (PS&E) shall be prepared and certified by a professional 
engineer or architect, as applicable, licensed in the State of Iowa.  
 

c. The Recipient shall be responsible for the following: 
 
i. Prepare and submit the PS&E and other contract documents to the Department for review and 

acceptance in accordance with I.M. 3.700, Check and Final Plans and I.M. 3.500, Bridge or Culvert 
Plans, as applicable. 

ii. The contract documents shall use the Department's Standard Specifications for Highway and Bridge 
Construction. Prior to their use in the PS&E, specifications developed by the Recipient for individual 
construction items shall be approved by the Department. 

iii. Follow the procedures in I.M. 5.030, Iowa DOT Letting Process, to analyze the bids received; make a 
decision to either award a contract to the lowest responsive bidder or reject all bids; and if a contract is 
awarded, execute the contract documents and return to Department. 

 
Note: The Department may not be able to allow a project to be let in the scheduled letting due to possible 
issues with cash flow availability.  
 

d. The Recipient shall forward a completed Project Development Certification (Form 730002) to the 
Department in accordance with I.M. 5.050, Project Development Certification Instructions. The project will 
not be turned in for bid letting until the Department has reviewed and accepted the Project Development 
Certification.  
 

e. If the Recipient is a city, the Recipient shall comply with the public hearing requirements of the Iowa Code 
section 26.12. 
 

182

Item 22.



 

f. The Recipient shall not provide the contractor with notice to proceed until after receiving written notice that 
the Department has concurred in the contract award. 
 

7. Construction.  
   
a. The Recipient shall follow the procedures in I.M. 6.000, Construction Inspection, and the Department’s 

Construction Manual, as applicable, for conducting construction inspection activities. The Recipient’s 
engineer shall at all times be responsible for inspection of the project. 
 

b. A full-time employee of the Recipient shall serve as the person in responsible charge of the project. For 
cities that do not have any full time employees, the mayor or city clerk will serve as the person in responsible 
charge, with assistance from the Department. 

 
c. Traffic control devices, signing, or pavement markings installed within the limits of this project shall conform 

to the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways" per 761 IAC Chapter 130. 
Proper protective measures and devices such as fences, barricades, signs, flood lighting, and warning 
lights as needed. 

 
d. The project shall be constructed under the Department's Standard Specifications for Highway and Bridge 

Construction and the Recipient shall comply with the procedures and responsibilities for materials testing 
according to the Department's Materials I.M.s. Available on-line at: https://www.iowadot.gov/erl/index.html. 

 

e. If the Department provides any materials testing services to the Recipient, the Department will bill the 
Recipient for such testing services according to its normal policy as per Materials I.M. 103. 
 

8. Reimbursements. 
 

a. The Recipient will be initially responsible for all project costs. After costs have been incurred, the Recipient 
shall submit to the Department periodic itemized claims for reimbursement for eligible project costs. 
Requests for reimbursement shall be made at least semi-annually but not more than bi-weekly.  
 

b. To ensure proper accounting of costs, reimbursement requests for costs incurred prior to June 30 shall be 
submitted to the Department by August 1, if possible, but no later than August 15. 
 

c. Reimbursement claims shall include a certification that all eligible project costs, for which reimbursement is 
requested, have been reviewed by an official or governing board of the Recipient, are reasonable and 
proper, have been paid in full, and were completed in substantial compliance with the terms of this 
agreement. 
 

d. The Department will reimburse the Recipient for properly documented and certified claims for eligible 
project costs. The Department may withhold up to 5% of the total funds available for the project. 
Reimbursement will be made either by State warrant or by crediting other accounts from which payment 
was initially made. If, upon final review or audit selected by the Administering Bureau, the Department 
determines the Recipient has been overpaid, the Recipient shall reimburse the overpaid amount to the 
Department. After the final review is complete and after the Recipient has provided all required paperwork, 
the Department will release the funds withheld.  
 

e. The total funds collected by the Recipient for this project shall not exceed the total project costs. The total 
funds collected shall include any funds received; for example, Federal funds not received through FHWA, 
any special assessments made by the Recipient (exclusive of any associated interest or penalties) pursuant 
to Iowa Code Chapter 384 (cities) or Chapter 311 (counties), proceeds from the sale of excess right-of-
way, and any other revenues generated by the project. The total project costs shall include all costs that 
can be directly attributed to the project. In the event that the total funds collected by the Recipient do exceed 
the total project costs, the Recipient shall either:  
 
i. in the case of special assessments, refund to the assessed property owners the excess special 

assessments collected (including interest and penalties associated with the amount of the excess), or 
ii. refund to the Department all funds collected in excess of the total project costs (including interest and 

penalties associated with the amount of the excess) within 60 days of the receipt of any excess funds. 
   

 

183

Item 22.

https://www.iowadot.gov/erl/index.html


 

9. Project Close-out. 
 
a. Acceptance of the completed construction shall be with the concurrence of the Department. Within 30 days 

of completion of construction or other activities authorized by this agreement, the Recipient shall provide 
written notification to the Department. The Recipient shall follow and request a final review, in accordance 
with the procedures in I.M. 6.110, Final Review, Audit, and Close-out Procedures for Federal-aid, Federal-
aid Swap, and Farm-to-Market Projects. Failure to comply with the procedures may result in loss of funds 
and the ability to let future projects through the Department; reimbursed funds shall be returned and a 
possible suspension may be placed on the Recipient from receiving funds from the Department on future 
projects until the Recipient has demonstrated responsible management of funds on roadway projects. 

  
b. For construction projects, the Recipient shall provide a certification by a professional engineer, architect, or 

landscape architect as applicable, licensed in the State of Iowa, indicating the construction was completed 
in substantial compliance with the project plans and specifications.  
 

c. Final reimbursement of funds shall be made only after the Department accepts the project as complete. 
 

d. The Recipient shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, reports, and other evidence 
pertaining to costs incurred for the project. The Recipient shall also make this documentation available at 
all reasonable times for review by the Department. Copies of this documentation shall be furnished by the 
Recipient if requested. Such documentation shall be retained for at least 3 years from the date of the 
Department’s signature of the Department’s Final Payment Form (Form 830436) or the bottom part of the 
Certificate of Completion and Final Acceptance of Agreement Work (Form 640003). 

 
e. The Recipient shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, the completed improvement in a manner 

acceptable to the Department. 
 

 

 

  

 

184

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Vacancy Agreements 
 
As part of the Main Street Reconstruction Project, it was determined that the property 
containing two rental units at 1123/1125 Main Street needed to be acquired in order to 
accommodate the proposed roundabout at the Main Street/12th Street intersection. Part 
of the negotiations for the property buyout was that the owner would not renew the 
leases of any of its tenants. It would have cost the City approximately $80,000 ($10,000 
per tenant) to relocate the eight (8) tenants from this apartment. 
 
In lieu of paying to relocate the eight (8) tenants, our property acquisition consultant 
(JCG Land Service, Inc., sub-consultant to Foth Infrastructure & Enviornment, L.L.C.) 
has negotiated a Vacancy Agreement with the owner where the City will pay the rent for 
the vacant rental units until the closing date when the City takes ownership of the 
property. The Engineering Division of the Public Works department requests your 
consideration and approval of these Vacancy Agreements. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer     

 
 
 

185

Item 23.



186

Item 23.



187

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from 
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. Partial acquisition 
for new city ROW will be required from nine (9) of these properties. In addition, two (2) 
total take acquisitions will be required to accommodate the new roundabout at the 
12th/Main intersection. The owners of the following fourteen (14) properties have 
accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

11 D&J Investments, Inc. 2604 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

29 2C Properties, LLC 2018 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

30 2C Properties, LLC 2010 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

41 T&R Rentals, LLC 1930 & 1932 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

45 Gracie Mae Properties L.C. 103 E. 18th Street Temporary and Partial 

53-2 Permanent Planning, Inc. 1702 Main Street Temporary 

156 Casey’s Marketing Company 601 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

197 K3D, LLC 1123 & 1125 Main Street Total Take 

204 D&V Holdings, LLC 1203 Main Street Total Take 

205 Tigerhawk Rentals, LLC 1209 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

206 Jonathan & Olivia Mossman 1217 Main Street Temporary and Partial 

291 Riverside Investments 2221 Main Street Temporary 

292 Riverside Investments 2301 Main Street Temporary  

300 D&J Investments, Inc. 7404 University Avenue Temporary and Partial 

 

188

Item 24.



Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The City will use a combination of General Obligation and Street Construction Funds for 
the design and right of way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environmental, LLC, of Cedar Rapids, 
Iowa on July 19, 2021 for property acquisition and design services. Funds for this 
project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY22 - FY27 
under item number 118. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary 
closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

189

Item 24.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

190

Item 24.

AndreasenL
Line



191

Item 24.



192

Item 24.



193

Item 24.



194

Item 24.



195

Item 24.



196

Item 24.



197

Item 24.



198

Item 24.



199

Item 24.



200

Item 24.



201

Item 24.



202

Item 24.



203

Item 24.



204

Item 24.



205

Item 24.



206

Item 24.



207

Item 24.



208

Item 24.



209

Item 24.



210

Item 24.



211

Item 24.



212

Item 24.



213

Item 24.



214

Item 24.



215

Item 24.



216

Item 24.



217

Item 24.



218

Item 24.



219

Item 24.



220

Item 24.



221

Item 24.



222

Item 24.



223

Item 24.



224

Item 24.



225

Item 24.



226

Item 24.



227

Item 24.



228

Item 24.



229

Item 24.



230

Item 24.



231

Item 24.



232

Item 24.



233

Item 24.



234

Item 24.



235

Item 24.



236

Item 24.



237

Item 24.



238

Item 24.



239

Item 24.



240

Item 24.



241

Item 24.



242

Item 24.



243

Item 24.



244

Item 24.



245

Item 24.



246

Item 24.



247

Item 24.



248

Item 24.



249

Item 24.



250

Item 24.



251

Item 24.



252

Item 24.



253

Item 24.



254

Item 24.



255

Item 24.



256

Item 24.



257

Item 24.



258

Item 24.



259

Item 24.



260

Item 24.



261

Item 24.



262

Item 24.



263

Item 24.



264

Item 24.



265

Item 24.



266

Item 24.



267

Item 24.



268

Item 24.



269

Item 24.



270

Item 24.



271

Item 24.



272

Item 24.



273

Item 24.



274

Item 24.



275

Item 24.



276

Item 24.



277

Item 24.



278

Item 24.



279

Item 24.



280

Item 24.



281

Item 24.



282

Item 24.



283

Item 24.



284

Item 24.



285

Item 24.



286

Item 24.



287

Item 24.



288

Item 24.



289

Item 24.



290

Item 24.



291

Item 24.



292

Item 24.



293

Item 24.



294

Item 24.



295

Item 24.



296

Item 24.



297

Item 24.



298

Item 24.



299

Item 24.



300

Item 24.



301

Item 24.



302

Item 24.



303

Item 24.



304

Item 24.



305

Item 24.



306

Item 24.



307

Item 24.



308

Item 24.



309

Item 24.



310

Item 24.



311

Item 24.



312

Item 24.



313

Item 24.



314

Item 24.



315

Item 24.



316

Item 24.



317

Item 24.



318

Item 24.



319

Item 24.



320

Item 24.



321

Item 24.



322

Item 24.



323

Item 24.



324

Item 24.



325

Item 24.



326

Item 24.



327

Item 24.



328

Item 24.



329

Item 24.



330

Item 24.



331

Item 24.



332

Item 24.



333

Item 24.



334

Item 24.



335

Item 24.



336

Item 24.



337

Item 24.



338

Item 24.



339

Item 24.



340

Item 24.



341

Item 24.



342

Item 24.



343

Item 24.



344

Item 24.



345

Item 24.



346

Item 24.



347

Item 24.



348

Item 24.



349

Item 24.



350

Item 24.



351

Item 24.



352

Item 24.



353

Item 24.



354

Item 24.



355

Item 24.



356

Item 24.



357

Item 24.



358

Item 24.



359

Item 24.



360

Item 24.



361

Item 24.



362

Item 24.



363

Item 24.



364

Item 24.



365

Item 24.



366

Item 24.



367

Item 24.



368

Item 24.



369

Item 24.



370

Item 24.



371

Item 24.



372

Item 24.



373

Item 24.



374

Item 24.



375

Item 24.



376

Item 24.



377

Item 24.



378

Item 24.



379

Item 24.



380

Item 24.



381

Item 24.



382

Item 24.



383

Item 24.



384

Item 24.



385

Item 24.



386

Item 24.



387

Item 24.



388

Item 24.



389

Item 24.



390

Item 24.



391

Item 24.



392

Item 24.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: August 29, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA22-003) 

 

 
On July 18th, 2022, the City Council held a public hearing on an ordinance to amend the Downtown 
Character District zoning regulations recommended unanimously by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at their June 8th meeting. In effect, this ordinance would have required site plans for 
new buildings proposed in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages to be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council.   
 
After the close of the public hearing the City Council discussed the proposed ordinance and a 
motion passed to refer the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition 
for additional amendments to the zoning ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would 
expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, 
C.2.b.”  The minutes of this discussion are listed below.  
  
Minutes from the July 18th City Council meeting:  
 
It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending Chapter 26, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans 
in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and 
Planning & Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires 
to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site plan that would expand 
the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b. 
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, 
and responses by Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion. 
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following comments by 
Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn 
and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the motion to petition the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay. 
  
Direction from Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
At the Commission’s August 10, 2022 meeting, the Commission discussed the petition from the 

393

Item 25.



 
 

City Council and directed staff to prepare draft language for consideration at a public hearing on 
August 24, 2022.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: At their August 24,2022 meeting, on a vote of 4-5, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended denial of the attached amendments to the zoning ordinance. 
Therefore, staff now recommends that the Council set a date for public hearing on these 
amendments for September 19, 2022.  
 
Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.   
 
 
Attachments:  

 Red-lined draft of the most recent proposed changes to the zoning code per the petition from City Council. 

 

 

394

Item 25.



Note that in the red-lined version of the proposed code amendments, the strike-through 
notation indicates language to be deleted. Underlined text is new language added.  All 
other language is unchanged and is included to provide context for the changes 
proposed. The highlighted section is the language that was recently amended per City 
Council’s petition for further revisions forwarded after the public hearing at City Council 
on July 18, 2022. 

Amend Section 26-191C., Applicability, as follows:  

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

 1.  Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character District 

standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

 2. The process for developing or redeveloping within a Character District is delineated in 

Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. All applications for development or redevelopment 

within a Character District shall be reviewed and approved according to the procedures 

set forth in Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively 

reviewed and approved, except for the following:   

a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban General 

2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.  

b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property 

designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on 

property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a., b., and c., above, the 

Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical 

Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and 

supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for review 

and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-

making. 

Amend Section 26-36 and 26-37, as follows:  

Sec. 26-36. Administrative Determination Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance 

Determinations, and Minor Adjustments 

(a) APPLICABILITY GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Zoning Administrator shall review and decide upon applications for the following 
administrative reviews and code adjustments in consultation with the Zoning Review 
Committee(ZRC) and/or the staff Technical Review Committee, as applicable. Some of 
these processes have additional review and approval requirements; a cross-reference to 
those requirements is provided in the right column.  

Permit or Adjustment Additional Review Requirements 

Site Plan Section 26-37.D 

395

Item 25.



Proportionate 
Compliance 

n/a 

Minor Adjustment Section 26-39.E 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate compliance 
determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be submitted on forms and 
in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing fee shall be paid at the time 
the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for re-submittals. Fees are 
determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted and 
are deemed sufficient complete in form and content such that recommendations, as 
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning Administrator, 
or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The Zoning Administrator 
shall determine application sufficiency completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall inform 
the applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met. The Zoning 
Administrator may provide notice in writing, electronically, or in conversation with the 
applicant.   

(3) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the applicant must resolve and 
resubmit the materials required to complete the application within 30 days of the date 
informed of the insufficiency of the application.  
a. An insufficient incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the 

completeness requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application 
shall be returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in 
support of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an application 
has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including payment of the 
application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the application 
and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information included in the 
application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the approval criteria of the 
procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review Committee 
(ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) The Zoning Administrator shall review the Applications shall be reviewed for 
conformance with all applicable provisions of this Code chapter.  

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this chapter 
Code unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified deviation 
from applicable standards. An administrative approval may include instructions and 
clarifications regarding compliance with this Code, but shall not be approved with 
conditions that require action beyond the specific requirements of the City Code of 
Ordinances.   

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and ZRC, as 
applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny the applications for site plan 
review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding proportionate 
compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the applicant. If an 
application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial. 
Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62.  

396

Item 25.



 
(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council 

review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall prepare 
a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, standards and 
requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and regulations. The staff 
report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
for its review and recommendation to the City Council. If the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommends denial, the site plan shall not be forwarded to the City Council, 
unless so requested by the applicant in writing. After consideration of the staff report and 
the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.  

 
(e) APPEAL 

1. Administrative determinations are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62. 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  

(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and approval 
of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site development plans, 
development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents that illustrate how the 
structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the requirements of this chapter and 
any other applicable ordinances, standards, regulations, and with all previously approved 
plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (front 

porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and accessory or 
temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not located forward of the 
required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, the site plan shall only be 
required to show the location of the proposed structure or addition in relation to 
property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and terrain changes as more 
fully detailed in this Code; 

(2) Traditional Zone Districts All other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for a commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
dwelling project development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan 
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior to 
the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. Pre-
application meetings are optional and encouraged for all other applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be established 
on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services Division and on 
the City’s website.   

397

Item 25.



(d) DECISION CRITERIA 

The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that may 

have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code the Code of 

Ordinances, or with all applicable requirements as modified by a request for a an 
approved minor adjustment. 

(e) LIMITATION OF APPROVAL 

Zoning Administrator approval of a site plan does not in any way imply approval by any other 
City department. 

(f) EFFECT 

(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their successors 
and assigns.   

(2) No permit shall be issued for any building, structure, or use that does not conform to an 
approved site plan.   

(3) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be modified 
without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such modification 
will not require an amended site plan.   

(4) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site 
plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(g) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable permit(s) 
for the proposed development a building permit has have not been issued. or the 
approved use established. In the event that the documents expire due to the 
passage of this time period, new site plan review documents must be submitted for 
approval in the same manner as an original application for development review.   

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the Zoning 
Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the reasons for 
such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site plans  

The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or the 
conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment or an 
amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An amended 
site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures specified in 
this Chapter for the an initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified in this Chapter.  

 

398

Item 25.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: August 31, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Change Proposal for the City Code Regarding Council Meetings 

 REF: (a) CFD 1121.22: Council Meeting Procedures 

1. Summary.  Given the recent update to reference (a), I respectfully request five updates to the 
City Code to remove unnecessary duplication and clarify the code. The below changes would 
not modify any existing processes or authorities. I have obtained legal counsel from the City 
Attorney; he has expressed no concerns to me regarding the below changes.  

2. Requested Changes.  

 Change 1: Delete the existing Section 2-46 regarding meeting quorums: This 
statement is an unnecessary replication of Rule 2.3 in reference (a).  

 Change 2: Add a new Section 2-46 regarding council meeting procedures: This new 
language specifies that the city council shall establish and maintain council meeting 
procedures. In change #3 below, I request to remove the list of specific standing 
committees from the City Code and to instead permanently maintain them in the Council 
Meeting Procedures. In order to cite that document, I believe it is proper and logical to 
establish that document here in the City Code first.  

 Change 3: Remove the list of specific standing committees from Sec 2-68(b): This 
list is already maintained in the Council Meeting Procedures, so should be removed from 
the City Code.  Duplication causes confusion during times when the City Code and Council 
Meeting Procedures do not match, and this change will eliminate the problem. 

 Change 4: Delete Sec 2-70 to 2-72 regarding committee processes: These sections 
describe information provided to committees, committee reporting, and discharge of 
special committees already exist in reference (a). 

 Change 5: Delete Sec 2-103 to 2-130 regarding parliamentary rules: These rules are 
already contained in the Council Meeting Procedures, and provide no added value here. 
No similar language exists in the 30+ other Iowa municipal codes I have reviewed. 

2. Thank you for your consideration of these housekeeping changes, in the interest of continuous 
improvement of local government.  Please contact me with any questions. 

Encl: (1) Proposed changes to City Code of Ordinances 

### 

399

Item 26.



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-46, QUORUM, OF DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-46, ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING 

PROCEDURES; (2) REPEALING DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, OF ARTICLE II, CITY 

COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 2-68, APPOINTMENT; STANDING COMMITTEES, AND 

SECTION 2-69, NUMBER OF MEMBERS; AND (3) REPEALING DIVISION 3, 

RULES OF PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, ALL CONTAINED IN 

CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO ELIMINATE COUNCIL PROCEDURES FROM THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 2-46, Quorum, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-46, Establishment of Meeting Procedures, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-46. - Quorum. 

A majority of the whole number of members of the council shall be necessary to constitute a 

quorum. Less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. 

(Code 2017, § 2-42) 

Sec. 2-46. – Establishment of council meeting procedures, 

The Cedar Falls city council shall establish for itself, and update from time to time, rules for 

the conduct of its regular meetings, committee meetings, and work sessions.  These council 

meeting procedures shall include parliamentary guidance particular to the needs of the 

council. 

                 Section 2.  Division 2, Committees, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Division 2, Committees, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - COMMITTEES 

Sec. 2-68. - Appointment; standing committees. 

 (a) Anyll standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor, and anyll 

special committees shall be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the 

council. All Sstanding committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at 

400

Item 26.



the first regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as 

practicable, and the first person named on each committee shall be the chairperson of such 

committee. 

(b) Standing committees of the council may be established within the council meeting 

procedures provided for in Section 2-46.   

The following shall be the standing committees: 

(1) Administration.  

(2) Public works. 

(3) Community relations and planning. 

 

(Code 2017, § 2-61) 

Sec. 2-69. - Number of members. 

(a) The Sstanding committees of the council shall consist of seven members each. 

(b) All Sspecial committees of the council shall consist of five members each, unless some 

other number is specified by the resolution which appoints such special committee. 

(Code 2017, § 2-62; Ord. No. 2605, § 1, 10-23-2006) 

Sec. 2-70. - Distribution of information when matter referred to committee. 

The city clerk shall forward all the papers to the appropriate committees and officers as soon 

as possible after the referral to a committee of the council has been made. 

(Code 2017, § 2-63) 

Sec. 2-71. - Reports. 

Standing and special committees of the council to whom references are made, in all cases, 

shall report in writing the state of facts, with their opinion, which opinion shall be summed up 

in the form of an order, resolution or recommendation, unless otherwise ordered by the 

council. 

(Code 2017, § 2-64) 

Sec. 2-72. - Discharge of special committees. 

On the acceptance of a final report from a special committee of the council, the committee 

shall be considered discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered. 

401

Item 26.



(Code 2017, § 2-65) 

Secs. 2-7370—2-102. - Reserved. 

           

             Section 3.  Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                     _________________________ 

                                                                                       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

402

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific 

Streets 
 
The no parking ordinance on Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street 
currently exists on the northerly and westerly side of the street. Cedar Falls Utilities 
(CFU) has requested that the east and south side of the street within these same limits 
also be considered for no parking. Parking is currently allowed on the east and south 
side of Utility Parkway. This area creates concerns of a congested corridor that can lead 
to single lane traffic and also potential vehicular movement conflicts onto and from 
Waterloo Road, 12th Street and Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current parking that exists on the 
east south side of Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street be restricted and 
designated as permanently prohibited parking. This will make the street safer with 
regards to traffic activities and vehicular movements within the corridor from Waterloo 
Road to Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets so the code will match the proposed limits of the no 
parking along Utility Parkway. Please see the attached changes to City Code Section 
23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval to set 
the newly defined area to prohibit on-street parking. This area is shown on the attached 
exhibit.    
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 

403

Item 27.



 
    

404

Item 27.



405

Item 27.

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Text Box
Current No Parking Limits

WickeD
Arrow

WickeD
Text Box
Proposed Area of Additional Prohibited Parking

WickeD
Arrow



 

 

 

July 29, 2022 

 

Mr. Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

RE:  Utility Parkway – request for No Parking Ordinance 

Dear Ron:  

On July 28, 2022, we discussed CFU’s concerns with traffic activity along Utility Parkway with you and Chase 

Schrage.     

Specifically, we respectfully request the City Council consider a change its street parking ordinance, 

specifically City Code §23‐374, so that parking would be prohibited on both sides of Utility Parkway. 

Currently, the ordinance prohibits parking on the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo 

Road northerly and easterly to the entrance to Washington Park. We would appreciate the prohibition of 

parking on the east side of Utility Parkway from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and easterly to 

the east curb line of Irving Street.  I have spoken with Western Home leadership (a neighboring employer), 

and they have no objections to this request. 

 

Thank you for your assistance, as well as the Council’s consideration.  

Sincerely, 

 
Steven E. Bernard 
General Manager/CEO 

406

Item 27.



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY STRIKING THE SUBSECTION PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON PORTIONS OF UTILITY PARKWAY, AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION PROHIBITING PARKING ON ALL OF UTILITY PARKWAY.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  The unnumbered subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Utility 
Parkway contained in Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 
1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 
Motor Vehicles, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection 
prohibiting parking on both sides of Utility Parkway contained in Section 23-374 is 
enacted, as follows: 

 

            Street                       Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving 
Street. 

 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED:           
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

407

Item 27.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Utility Parkway  On the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and 
easterly to the entrance to Washington Park.  

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving Street. 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019) 

408

Item 27.



409

Item 28.



410

Item 28.



411

Item 28.



412

Item 28.



413

Item 28.



414

Item 28.



415

Item 28.



416

Item 28.



417

Item 28.



418

Item 28.



419

Item 28.



420

Item 28.



421

Item 28.



422

Item 28.



423

Item 28.



424

Item 28.



425

Item 28.



426

Item 28.



427

Item 28.



428

Item 28.



429

Item 28.



430

Item 28.



431

Item 28.



432

Item 28.



433

Item 28.



434

Item 28.



435

Item 28.



436

Item 28.



437

Item 28.



438

Item 28.



439

Item 28.



440

Item 28.



441

Item 28.



442

Item 28.



443

Item 28.



444

Item 28.



445

Item 28.



446

Item 28.



447

Item 28.



448

Item 28.



449

Item 28.



450

Item 28.



451

Item 28.



452

Item 28.



453

Item 28.



454

Item 28.



455

Item 28.



456

Item 28.



457

Item 28.



458

Item 28.



459

Item 28.



460

Item 28.



461

Item 28.



462

Item 28.



463

Item 28.



464

Item 28.



465

Item 28.



466

Item 28.



467

Item 28.



468

Item 28.



469

Item 28.



470

Item 28.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of August 15, 2022
	220815MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation - Constitution Week
	2022-09-W3_ConstitutionWeek

	Item 3.	Proclamation-National Rail Safety Week
	2022-09-W3_RailSafetyWeek

	Item 4.	Ord. 3015-EV Parking Spaces
	1-EV space memo
	2-Ord-EV Parking Spaces

	Item 5.	Administration Committee Minutes
	08-10-22 Administration Committee Minutes-Final

	Item 6.	Committee Minutes - 08-15-22
	08-15-22 Standing Committee Minutes

	Item 7.	Boards & Commissions - Appointments
	2022-08-30_HRC_Appoint_Wright-Mallin-Mehmen

	Item 8.	Building Inspector Civil Service certified list
	BldgInspector-CertList8-2022

	Item 9.	Departmental Monthly Report
	07 - Monthly Report July 2022

	Item 10.	Tobacco Viol - Buzz Smoke & Vapor
	1-Tobacco-Order Accepting Agreement-Buzz Smoke
	2-Acknowledgement-Settlement Agreement - Signed
	3-Hearing Complaint, 1st Violation

	Item 11.	Liquor Beer 8-29-22
	Liquor Beer 9-6-22

	Item 12.	Transfer of Funds
	1-year end transfer council FY22.mem
	Res.Transfer resolution year end

	Item 13.	Wellworks Contract
	Memo for Council 8-22-22
	City of Cedar Falls_Wellness Program Services Agreement_FINAL 8-18-22

	Item 14.	Red House Lease
	Red House StudiosLeaseMemo_09062022

	Item 15.	Arts Council Grant
	IowaArtsCouncil _CLP_08252022_Council

	Item 16.	Main Street Bridge Murals
	1. 08-2022 memo to Mayor-Mural Artworks
	2. Agreement for Use of Artwork_MuralProject_Desnoyers
	3. Agreement for Use of Artwork_MuralProject_Jayde_sign
	4. Agreement for Use of Artwork_MuralProject_Rozario_Sign

	Item 17.	Rotary Plaza Agreement (W 1st St.)
	1. Council memo 8-25-22
	Rotary Agreement signed 8-29-22

	Item 18.	Rental to Owner Conversion-1910 Tremont Street
	1. Memo to Council - 1910 Tremont Street
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 1910 Tremont Street
	3. Letter of intention
	4. Application
	5. Quote from Contractor
	6. Home updates-proposal
	7. Existing House photos

	Item 19.	CH Neighborhood Overlay Zoning-1224 W 20th St.
	1_CC Staff report for a new duplex
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 1224 updated plot & landscape plan
	4. Floor Plans
	5. Painted Elevations - 1224 West 20th St. CF
	6. Letter of Intent 1224 W 20 th.

	Item 20.	Low Bid- 2022 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. Low Bid - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment
	2. Bid Worksheet

	Item 21.	Deed-Olive Street Box Culvert
	1. ROW Memo - Olive Box
	2009 Olive purchaser affidavit and warranty deed

	Item 22.	STBG SWAP Grant-Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Memo - Main Street STBG SWAP Funding Agreement
	2. STBG-SWAP-1185(657)--SG-07  Agreement 2-22-STBG-SWAP-019 rev

	Item 23.	Vacancy Agreements-Main Street Recon
	1. Vacancy Agreement - 1123 and 1125 Main Street - Memo
	2. 1123 and 1125 Main St Vacancy Agreements - Signed

	Item 24.	Main Street ROW
	1. ROW Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 11 - 2604 Main
	Parcel 29- 2018 Main
	Parcel 30 - 2010 Main
	Parcel 41- 1930 &1932 Main
	Parcel 45-103 E 18th
	Parcel 53-2-1702 Main
	Parcel 156 -601 Main
	Parcel 197-1123&1125 Main- TOTAL TAKE
	Parcel 204-  1203 Main- TOTAL TAKE
	Parcel 205 -1209 Main
	Parcel 206-1217 Main
	Parcel 291 - 2221 Main 
	Parcel 292-2301 Main
	Parcel 300- 7404 University

	Item 25.	Set PH-Zoning-Site Plan Review in Downtown Character District
	1. CC.memo.set PH.second petition.9.6.22
	2. draft language site plan review.8.24.22

	Item 26.	Ord-City Council Procedures
	1-CouncilCodeChangeRequestMemo Revised 8-31-22
	Ordinance Council Rules of Procedure-Revised 8-31-22

	Item 27.	Ord-Utility Parkway Parking
	1. Memo - Parking Prohibited on Utility Parkway Ordinance
	2. Utility Parkway
	3. Utility Parkway - request for No Parking Ordinance 2022
	4. Parking Ordinance for Utility Parkway_rev 08.03.22 (2)
	5. Redlined Sec._23_374_rev

	Item 28.	Bills & Claims
	1Daily Invoices 090622
	2Council Invoices 090622

	Bottom

